
 

1 
 

AGENDA 
 

Mason Transit Authority Board 
Regular Meeting 

August 18, 2020, 4:00 p.m. 
Mason Transit Authority 

Transit-Community Center Conference Room 
601 West Franklin Street 

Shelton 
OR 

Pursuant to Governor’s Proclamation 20-28.8, the public 
meeting held virtually using the follow ing WebEx credentials 

To join by phone: 1-408-418-9388 
Meeting number (access code): 126 966 0387 (Password) 0790 

Mason County is currently in Stage 3, therefore members of the public 
may also attend in person. 

 
 

OPENING PROTOCOL 
CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA – ACTION 

 
RECOGNITION OF BOARD MEMBER PETERSEN 
 
CONSENT AGENDA – ACTION 

1. Pg. 003: Approval of Minutes: Approval of the minutes of the July 21, 2020 
     MTA regular Board meeting. 
2. Pg. 007: Financial Reports: July, 2020 
3. Pg. 014: Check Approval: July 16 – August 11, 2020 

 
REGULAR AGENDA 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
1. Pg. 020: Transit Development Plan (TDP) – ACTIONABLE (Danette) 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
1. Pg. 046: Approval of WSDOT Local Agency Participating Agreement No. GCB3332 
 (Shelton Matlock Road Park & Ride Project) Resolution No. 2020–16 -  
 ACTIONABLE (Danette) 
2. Pg. 077: Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) – ACTIONABLE 
 (Danette) 
3. Pg. 091: Update of Determining Responsibility for Policies (POL-100) – 
 Resolution No. 2020-17 – ACTIONABLE (Danette) 
4. Pg. 098: Update of Numbering and Indexing Policies, Procedures and Task Outlines 
 (POL-101) – Resolution No. 2020-18 – ACTIONABLE (Danette) 
5. Pg. 111: Update of Distributing and Implementing Policies, Procedures and Task Outlines 
 (POL-102) – Resolution No. 2020-19 – ACTIONABLE (Danette) 
6. Pg. 118: Update of Credit Card Use Policy (POL-401) – Resolution No. 2020-20 – 
 ACTIONABLE (Danette) 
7. Pg. 129: Update of Coffee and Light Refreshments Policy (POL-403) –  
 Resolution No. 2020-21 – ACTIONABLE (Danette) 
8. Pg. 136: Approval of First Amendment to Agreement PTD0044 - Resolution No. 2020–22 - 
  ACTIONABLE (Danette) 
9. Pg. 143: Approval of Contract with Rognlin’s on MTA Park and Ride Construction Projects  
 - Resolution No. 2020–23 - ACTIONABLE (Danette) 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 1



2 

INFORMATIONAL 
Reports 

1. Pg. 164: Park and Ride Update
2. Pg. 165: Management Reports
3. Pg. 174: Operational Statistics

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

COMMENTS BY BOARD 

ADJOURNMENT 

UPCOMING MEETINGS: 

Mason Transit Authority 
Regular Meeting 

September 15, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. 
MTA Transit-Community Center 

601 West Franklin Street 
Shelton 

All participants are welcome. The meeting locations are ADA accessible. If you anticipate needing any type 
of accommodation or have questions about the physical access provided, please call 360-426-9434 in 
advance. We will make every effort to meet accommodation requests. 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 2



1 

 

               

Mason Transit Authority 
Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting  
July 21, 2020 
Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street 
Shelton 
Pursuant to Governor’s Proclamation 20-28.7, the 
public meeting was held virtually using WebEx 
with the public being able to attend in listen-only mode 
as well as in person. 
 
OPENING PROTOCOL 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 4:04 p.m.  
 
Authority Voting Board Members Present: Wes Martin, Chair; Sharon Trask, Vice Chair; 
John Campbell, Kevin Dorcy, Matt Jewett, Kevin Shutty and Sandy Tarzwell. Quorum met, 
Wes Martin and Matt Jewett attended in person and all other named Board 
members were present via WebEx virtual conference. 
 
Authority Voting Board Members Not Present: Deb Petersen, Randy Neatherlin. 
 
Authority Non-voting Board Member Present via WebEx virtual conference: 
Greg Heidal, Business Representative, IAM and AW, District Lodge 160. 
 
Citizen Advisor to the Board Present: John Piety 
 
Others Present in Person: Danette Brannin, General Manager, Tracy Becht, Clerk of the 
Board 
 
Others Present via WebEx:  LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager; 
Marshall Krier, Maintenance and Facilities Manager; Mike Ringgenberg, Operations Manager; 
Shannon Phillips, Legal Counsel for Union negotiation and Elizabeth Safsten, WSDOT 
Community Liaison to Mason Transit Authority. 
 
Others Present via WebEx conference: 
Robert Johnson, MTA Legal Counsel. 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA 
 
Moved that the agenda for the July 21, 2020 Mason Transit Authority (MTA) regular board 
meeting be approved. Campbell/Tarzwell. Motion carried. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Moved to approve Consent Agenda items 1 – 3, as follows: 
 

1. Moved to approve the minutes of the MTA regular Board meeting of May 19, 2020. 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 3



2 

 

               

 
2. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve the financial reports for June, 

2020 as presented. 
 
3. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve the payments of May 14, 

2020 through July 13, 2020 financial obligations on checks #34127 through #34308, 
as presented for a total of $2,836,205.41. 

 
Trask/Tarzwell. Motion carried. 
 
(Board member Neatherlin arrived at 4:12 pm) 
REGULAR AGENDA 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
1. Pear Orchard Cooperative Agreement – Danette Brannin, General Manager, brought the 

Board up-to-date by sharing the initial developments from a year ago when MTA began work 
on the Pear Orchard Park and Ride project. It was thought that there was potential 
contamination near a manhole cover. Since then there has been sample testing done and no 
contaminants were found in the soil. The Cooperative Agreement is needed to provide an 
understanding of the responsibilities of each party and terms of the agreement. The City of 
Shelton has already approved the form of the Cooperative Agreement that is now being 
provided to the Board for approval. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board adopt 
Resolution No. 2020-12 approving the Cooperative Agreement between Mason Transit 
Authority and the City of Shelton for the purpose of the Pear Orchard Park & Ride and 
authorizing the General Manager to sign the Cooperative Agreement. Shutty/Trask. 
Motion carried. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
1. Union Contract for Drivers – Ms. Brannin described to the Board that a tentative 

agreement had been reached between MTA and the International Association of Machinists 
and Aerospace Workers (IAM&AW) for MTA’s drivers. Shannon Phillips, of Summit Law, had 
assisted with the negotiations and was present during the Board meeting should the Board 
have any questions. Ms. Brannin briefly went over the highlights and indicated that the first 
two years of wages were negotiated, and the contract now has a payout of sick leave if 
separating from MTA on good terms. Additionally, the union had ratified the tentative 
agreement. Ms. Brannin also indicated that MTA’s legal counsel, as well Board members 
Jewett of the Operation and Maintenance Committee and Deb Petersen of the Human 
Resources Committee were kept apprised during the negotiation process. The fiscal impact 
for 2020 is $131,077 in wages. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve the 
agreement for the drivers between Mason Transit Authority and the International Association 
of Machinists and Aerospace Workers District Lodge 160 for the period June 1, 2020 to May 
31, 2023 (the “Agreement”) and approve Resolution No. 2020-13 authorizing the General 
Manager to sign the Agreement. Campbell/Jewett. Motion carried. 

 
2. First View of Transit Development Plan (TDP) – Ms. Brannin shared with the Board 

that the TDP is required to be updated annually, as well as the dates and locations of the 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 4



3 

 

               

upcoming public hearings. She also shared that the TDP is in a slightly different format and 
updated much of the same information. The estimated forecast is that 2021 will be similar to 
2020; 2022 will have a significant impact, estimated to be 30% reduction in revenue and 
2023 will still contain challenges for MTA. Board member Campbell expressed an interest in 
attending one of the public hearings. Ms. Brannin informed the Board that she will be 
bringing the TDP back in August for final approval. 

 
3. Revised Drug & Alcohol Policy (POL-301) – LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services 

Manager, shared with the Board that the policy is being updated required by the USDOT and 
FTA. She also shared that MTA’s legal counsel had reviewed the updated policy. Moved that 
the Mason Transit Authority Board Resolution No. 2020-14 and the attached Drug and 
Alcohol Policy (POL-301). Jewett/Neatherlin. Motion carried. 

 
4. WSTIP Risk Profile – Ms. Brannin went over highlights of information pertaining to MTA. 
 
5. Surplus Vehicles – Marshall Krier, Maintenance and Facilities Manager, shared that the 

vehicles being requested for surplus are beyond their useful life and are being replaced with 
the nine new cutaways that MTA has placed into service. A Board member asked whether or 
not another transit agency may be able to use the vehicles being surplused. Mr. Krier 
indicated that he would put out a state-wide ASK to see if any other agencies would be 
interested. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board adopt Resolution No. 2020-15 
declaring and approving the surplus and disposal of vehicles as set forth therein. 
Campbell/Tarzwell. Motion carried. 

 
6. Change Order 1 - Radich Building Parking Lot – Ms. Brannin described the need for 

the change order and the high cost of disposing the contaminated soils between two 
facilities. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Change Order No. 1 
expenditure increase of $80,244 relating to the February 25, 2016 contract between the City 
of Shelton and MTA. Campbell/Neatherlin. Motion carried. 

 
7. Change Order 7 and 8 - Roundabout Project – Ms. Brannin shared that these two 

changes orders were as a result of the closeout of the project.  
 
8. Change Order 2 - Pear Orchard – Ms. Brannin informed the Board that these costs are 

associated with resuming work after a 13-month shut down due to potential contamination 
at the site. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Change Order #2 not to 
exceed $68,352.50 to resume work on the Pear Orchard Park & Ride. Tarzwell/Trask. 
Motion carried. 

 
INFORMATIONAL – No further additions. 
 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT –No further additions.  
 
COMMENTS BY THE BOARD – Board Chair Martin said the staff is doing a positive and 
amazing job. Board member Campbell stated he was impressed with the TDP and that MTA has 
a strong and tight rein on public funds. 
 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 5



4 

 

               

Moved that the meeting be adjourned.  

ADJOURNED 5:00 p.m. 
 
UPCOMING MEETING 

 
 

Mason Transit Authority 
Regular Meeting 

August 18, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. 
On-line via WebEx and in person at 
MTA Transit-Community Center 

601 West Franklin Street 
Shelton 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 6



August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 7



August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 8



August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 9



August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 10



August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 11



August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 12



August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 13



August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 14



August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 15



August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 16



August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 17



August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 18



August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 19



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Unfinished Business – Item 1 – Actionable 
Subject:       Transit Development Plan (TDP) 
Prepared by:     Danette Brannin, General Manager  
Approved by:    Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:         August 18, 2020 
 
Background: 
 
The initial draft of the attached proposed Transit Development Plan (TDP) for Mason 
Transit Authority was provided for first viewing at the July 21, 2020 Board meeting. 
Since that viewing, MTA has conducted public meetings on July 29 and August 6. The 
period seeking input, comments or questions from the public was open until 4:00 PM on 
Friday, August 14, 2020. 
 
No changes were made to the TDP since the July Board meeting. 
 
Citizen Advisor to the Board, John Piety, attended the both public hearings and had no 
additional changes to the TDP. No other citizens attended either public hearing. 
 
 
 
Summary:  Approve Transit Development Plan (TDP) 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
None. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve the Transit Development Plan 
Draft for 2020-2025 with the 2019 Annual Report for submission to the Washington 
State Department of Transportation by September 1, 2020. 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 20



 

Page | 1 

 

Mason Transit Authority 
790 E Johns Prairie Rd 

Shelton, WA 98584 
 

 
 

 
  

  

Date of Public Hearings: 

July 29, 2020 and August 6, 2020 

Adopted on:  August 18, 2020 

Prepared by Mason Transit Authority Staff 
 
 

w 

 
 

 2020-2025 

TRANSIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
and 

2019 Annual Report 
 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 21



Page | 2 
 

Table of Contents 
 
 
Plan Adoption, Public Hearing and Distribution ......................................................................................... 3 

Plan Adoption ........................................................................................................................................... 3 

Public Participation Process .................................................................................................................... 3 

Plan Distribution ...................................................................................................................................... 3 

Description of Service Area, Operations and Facilities .............................................................................. 4 

Service Area .............................................................................................................................................. 4 

Operations ................................................................................................................................................ 4 

Map 1 – Service Area ................................................................................................................................ 6 

Table 1 - Fares ........................................................................................................................................... 8 

Facilities .................................................................................................................................................... 8 

Park and Ride Lots ............................................................................................................................... 9 

State and Agency Goals, Objectives and Strategies .................................................................................. 9 

Table 2:  2020 – 2025 Goals, Objectives, and Strategies, and Alignment with State Goal ................. 10 

Local Performance Measures and Targets ............................................................................................... 14 

Table 3:  2020 – 2025 Performance Measurements and Targets .......................................................... 15 

Plan Consistency ......................................................................................................................................... 15 

Planned Capital Expenses .......................................................................................................................... 16 

Table 4 – Planned Capital Expenses ...................................................................................................... 16 

Planned Operating Changes ....................................................................................................................... 17 

Table 5 – Planned Operating Changes ................................................................................................... 17 

Multiyear Financial Plan ............................................................................................................................. 18 

Capital Improvement: ............................................................................................................................ 18 

Table 6 – Capital Purchases ................................................................................................................... 18 

Operating Financial Assumptions through 2025 .................................................................................. 19 

Table 7 – Operating ................................................................................................................................ 20 

Projects of Regional Significance ............................................................................................................... 21 

Agency History, Organizational Structure, Accomplishments, Outlook and Outreach Coordination ... 21 

Board of Directors: .................................................................................................................................. 21 

Citizen Adviser to the Board: ................................................................................................................. 22 

Public Outreach: ..................................................................................................................................... 22 

2019 Accomplishments: ......................................................................................................................... 24 

Table 9 – 2019 Accomplishments .......................................................................................................... 24 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 22



Page | 3 
 

 

Plan Adoption, Public Hearing and Distribution 

Plan Adoption 
Mason Transit Authority (MTA)  Board of Directors adopted the 2020 Transit 
Development Plan on August 18, 2020 

Public Participation Process 
 Public Comment Period: July 21, 2020 – August 13, 2020 
 Comments Submitted to: MTA@masontransit.org 
     Mason Transit Authority 
     General Manager 
     790 E Johns Prairie Rd 
     Shelton, WA 98584 
 

Public Hearing: Mason Transit Authority held two public hearings on the Transit 
Development Plan on July 29, 2020 at 5:30pm at the Port of Allyn 18560 E State Route 
3, Allyn, WA 98524 and August 6, 2020 at 5:30 pm at the Transit-Community Center, 
601 W Franklin Ave, Shelton, WA 98584. 
 
Notice Posted to Website: MTA posted a notice of the hearing on the Transit 
Development Plan to its website at www.masontransit.org on July 17, 2020. 
 
Notice Published in Local Paper: The Shelton Journal published a notice of the 
hearing on the Transit Development Plan on July 23, 2020. 
 
Requests for Paper or Digital Copies: MTA allowed the public to request a paper or 
digital copy of the Transit Development Plan on and after July 17, 2020 by emailing 
MTA@masontransit.org. or by calling (360) 426-9434. 
 
Available to the Public for Review: MTA allow the public to view a copy of the draft 
Transit Development Plan at the Mason Transit Authority Business Office, 790 E 
Johns Prairie Rd, Shelton, WA 98584 and at the Transit-Community Center, 601 W 
Franklin Ave, Shelton, WA 98584. 

Plan Distribution 
On August 19, 2020, Mason Transit Authority distributed the adopted Transit 
Development Plan to:  

• PTDPlans@wsdot.wa.gov 
• The agency’s assigned WSDOT Community Liaison. 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 23

mailto:MTA@masontransit.org
http://www.masontransit.org/
mailto:MTA@masontransit.org
mailto:PTDPlans@wsdot.wa.gov


Page | 4 
 

• The Transportation Improvement Board via: 
o Vaugh Nelson, Finance Manager at vaughnn@tib.wa.gov 
o Chris Workman, Engineering Manager at chrisw@tib.wa.gov 

• All cities, counties and regional transportation planning organizations within 
which Mason Transit Authority operates. 

 

Description of Service Area, Operations and Facilities 

Service Area 
Mason Transit Authority serves the general public throughout Mason County and 
provides regional connections with other transits and modes of transportation. 

Regional connections with other transit systems occur Monday through Saturday 
with Intercity Transit, Sound Transit and Grays Harbor Transit in Olympia; Kitsap 
Transit and the Washington State Ferry system in Bremerton; and Jefferson Transit at 
Triton Cove State Park.  Regional connection with Squaxin Transit occurs Monday 
through Friday at the Squaxin Island Tribe Park and Ride Facility near the intersection 
of SR-101 and SR-108. 

The majority of MTA’s connecting services are at transfer facilities located near 
services that allow connections to other ground transportation including Washington 
State Ferries in Bremerton and Greyhound and Amtrak in Olympia. 

Service is available to persons traveling to and from area schools including 
Olympic College, South Puget Sound Community College, Evergreen State College, 
and Grays Harbor College by using MTA to transfer to Intercity, Grays Harbor and 
Kitsap Transit systems at respective transit centers. 

Route schedules and maps can be found on MTA’s website at 
http://www.masontransit.org/ 

Operations 
At time of publication of the Transit Development Plan, MTA was running reduced 
service due to COVID-19. Days of operations were Monday – Friday, with limited 
emergency Dial-a-Ride on Saturday. Beginning August 22, 2020 MTA will resume some 
additional service on Saturday. 

MTA provides services consisting of local and regional deviated fixed routes, 
Worker/Driver commuter service to Puget Sound Naval Shipyard (PSNS) and public 
commuter services on high demand regional routes, Demand Response (general dial-
a-ride), Vanpools and volunteers using private cars under the Volunteer Driver 
Program that serves those over the age of 60 needing out-of-county services.    

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 24

mailto:vaughnn@tib.wa.gov
mailto:chrisw@tib.wa.gov
http://www.masontransit.org/
http://www.masontransit.org/


Page | 5 
 

Hours of operation of the transportation service are 4:00 a.m. to 8:30 p.m., Monday 
through Friday, and 6:00 a.m. to 8:30 p.m. on Saturday.  There is no service on 
Sunday, and either no service or reduced service on observed holidays.  MTA 
operates nine (9) Fixed Routes on weekdays and eight (8) routes on Saturdays that 
allow deviated service to persons traveling off designated routes.  Dial-A-Ride service 
operates in rural areas where there is no fixed route service or where deviations are 
not possible as well as in populated areas of Mason County for people who have 
difficulty using the routed service.  All Dial-A-Ride service is open to the general 
public.  Riders using Dial-A-Ride can make a trip request from two (2) hours before to 
two (2) weeks prior to the preferred pick-up time but may request a ride at anytime if 
there is availability.  All vehicles in MTA scheduled service are equipped with bike 
racks and are accessible to persons with disabilities. 

MTA coordinates all service requests with other local and regional area 
transportation providers.  Squaxin Transit coordinates local service with MTA 
regional service at Kamaliche.   MTA partners with local and regional human and 
social services providers so that the best service possible is provided throughout the 
region on a regular basis. 

MTA administers a Volunteer Driver Program (VDP) that is possible through 
partnership with the Lewis, Mason and Thurston County Area Agency on Aging and 
funding from the Federal Older Americans Act and the Washington State Senior 
Citizens Act, as well as donations from recipients.  The VDP provides essential 
transportation for seniors (60+) who are unable to drive or use public transit to their 
out-of-county medical appointments and other essential services.  To provide this 
service, MTA utilizes volunteers that donate their time and drive their own vehicles.  
In 2019, the Volunteer Driver Program served 149 clients and covered 1,354 rides, 
60,463 miles and 2,726 volunteer hours. 

MTA’s vanpool program started in 2005. At time of publication, MTA has a fleet of 12 
vanpool vans to promote statewide ridesharing goals and benefits to commuters 
living or working in Mason County.  This program complements Mason Transit 
Authority’s network of local and express services, providing commute alternatives to 
destinations that cannot be effectively served by Fixed Route services.  In 2019, 
Mason Transit Authority Vanpools provided over 20,222 rides, 5.5% of the agency’s 
fixed route ridership.  2019 ended with 8 active vanpools. 

 

 

 

 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 25



Page | 6 
 

Map 1 – Service Area 
 

 

 

 

 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 26



Page | 7 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 27



Page | 8 
 

Table 1 - Fares 
Travel within Mason County and Active Military     Fare Free 
Out of County Travel: 

Cash Fares 
Adults and Youth (one way)                                                                         $1.50 
Seniors and Persons with Disabilities                                                           $  .50 
Transportation Incentive Program (PSNS)                                                   $ 2.50 
Children under six                                                                                  No Charge 

Monthly Pass 
Adults                                                                                                          $  30.00 
Seniors and Persons with Disabilities                                                          $  10.00 
Youth (ages 6-17 years)                                                                              $  18.00 
Summer Youth Adventure Pass                                                                  $  20.00 
Transportation Incentive Program (PSNS)                                                  $110.00 

 

To qualify for reduced fare due to a disability, riders are required to show a Regional 
Reduced Fare Permit (RRFP) card. RRFP eligibility is based on age, disability or 
possession of a Medicare card. Personal care attendants ride free when accompanying 
a person with a RRFP.  

Transportation Incentive Program (TIP) passes are available for Worker/Driver routes 
to and from Puget Sound Naval Shipyard for day shift employees. Routes originate in 
Belfair and Shelton. Active-duty military personnel with current military ID are not 
charged fare if ID is shown. 

In July 2018, MTA began recognizing the STAR pass for State of Washington employees 
living in Mason County that work in Thurston County. STAR pass holders are not 
charged a fare and MTA is compensated through funds provided in the Transportation 
budget. 

Facilities 
MTA operations, maintenance and administrative facilities are located at 790 E. Johns 
Prairie Road in Shelton, Washington.  A rented satellite operations facility is located 
at 23780 NE State Hwy 3 in Belfair, Washington.  MTA also leases space at the Glacier 
West Boat, RV & Self Storage commercial storage facility on SR 106 in Belfair to park 
two coaches and five cutaway vans used to provide services in the northern part of 
Mason County. 

MTA owns the Transit-Community Center, formerly the Shelton Armory, located at 
601 W. Franklin St. in Shelton, Washington.  The facility was renovated with additional 
new construction transforming the original armory built in the 1950’s to a modern, 
ADA accessible and LEED Silver Certified Transit-Community Center (T-CC).  

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 28



Page | 9 
 

A seven-acre parcel was purchased north of Belfair for a Park and Ride lot. The lot will 
contain 100 parking stalls and a building consisting of MTA office space, a meeting 
room, bathrooms, a kitchen, breakroom and future customer service area. The Park 
and Ride is slated to open in fall of 2020 with the building to open in early 2022. 

Park and Ride Lots 
MTA supports a network of Park and Ride facilities that are located throughout 
Mason County.  At time of publication, 255 parking spaces are provided at facilities 
owned and operated by Washington State Department of Transportation, Mason 
County and the City of Shelton.  While MTA manages and provides routine light 
maintenance to these locations, the agency does not own the properties.  On 
average, 37 percent of the Park and Ride lot capacity is occupied on any given 
weekday.  

In November of 2015, MTA was formally awarded funding through the Washington 
State Regional Mobility Grant Program and the Connecting Washington Transit 
Project List for a major retrofit and improvement project of current Park and Ride 
lots located within Mason County. The project will add needed upgrades to existing 
locations including enhanced security, lighting, paving and electric car charging 
stations at high use lots.  The project also includes the construction of one new Park 
and Ride facility in North Mason County and one within the city limits of Shelton.  The 
Shelton-Matlock Park & Ride was slated for improvements only but will now be 
relocated due to the Coffee Creek Fish Passage project. The funding provides over 
nine million dollars and includes local matching funds from MTA.  The state funding is 
apportioned over the current and next biennium budget periods.  In April of 2016, 
MTA selected SCJ Alliance of Lacey, Washington, to guide the project through to 
completion. MTA expects completion of the project in 2022.   

State and Agency Goals, Objectives and Strategies 
 

From 2020-2025, Mason Transit Authority will focus on the five key priorities in 
Table 2 below. The table shows how MTA’s local priorities align with state goals 
established in the Washington State Transportation Plan.  

Through its mission, Mason Transit Authority strives to provide transportation 
choices that connect people, jobs and community; increasing the quality of life in 
Mason County. To that end, MTA’s proposed project and action strategies line up 
with the mission statement and the state’s public transportation objectives.  
 
 

 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 29



Page | 10 
 

The state’s six policy goals are: 

• Economic Vitality: To promote and develop transportation systems that 
stimulate, support, and enhance the movement of people and goods to ensure 
a prosperous economy. 

• Preservation: To maintain, preserve, and extend the life and utility of prior 
investments in transportation systems and services. 

• Safety: To provide for and improve the safety and security of transportation 
customers and the transportation system. 

• Mobility: To improve the predictable movement of goods and people 
throughout Washington State. 

• Environment: To enhance Washington’s quality of life through transportation 
investments that promote energy conservation, enhance healthy communities, 
and protect the environment. 

• Stewardship: To continuously improve the quality, effectiveness, and efficiency 
of the transportation system. 

Table 2:  2020 – 2025 Goals, Objectives, and Strategies, and Alignment with State 
Goal 
 

  State Goal Areas 

Goals, Objectives and Strategies 

Ec
on

om
ic

 V
ita

lit
y 

Pr
es

er
va

tio
n 

Sa
fe

ty
 

M
ob

ili
ty

 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

St
ew

ar
ds

hi
p 

Goal I: Safe and Secure 
Objective 1.1 - Emphasize safety of MTA riders, citizens and 
employees in all aspects of MTA operations             

Strategic Work Plan 1.1.1 Define Safety Committee's 
purpose and direction     X   X   

Strategic Work Plan 1.1.2 Place curbs or bollards in 
parking area next to building at Johns Prairie     X       

Strategic Work Plan 1.1.3 Review WSTIP's Best Practices 
in the area of safety     X X   X 

Strategic Work Plan 1.1.4 Purchase rain jackets for 
employee safety     X       

Strategic Work Plan 1.1.5 Replace vehicles to comply 
with State of Good Repair goals   x X       

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 30



Page | 11 
 

Objective 1.2 - Ensure training for a safe and secure 
experience for all and to eliminate preventable accidents             

Strategic Work Plan 1.2.1 Quarterly Driver training and 
refresher training as required   X X       

Strategic Work Plan 1.2.2 Ensure L&I safety compliance 
through training.     X       
Objective 1.3 - Provide technology and resources to 
support secure movement of buses             

Strategic Work Plan 1.3.1 Complete CAD/AVL/GPS 
installation       X   X 
Objective 1.4 - Proactive approach to safety throughout the 
agency to increase and improve security throughout the 
service area             

Strategic Work Plan 1.4.1 Change from flag stops to fixed 
stops in urban area of Shelton     X X   X 
Objective 1.5 - Enforce transit rules and establish 
consistency of service to riders in a safe, accessible manner             

Strategic Work Plan 1.5.1 Have a manager or supervisor 
on duty during service hours by moving the Ops office to 
the T-CC     X X   X 
Goal 2: Effective Transportation Services 
Objective 2.1 - Creating a positive transportation 
experience within all modes of MTA services that is 
reliable, accessible, equitable, safe, secure and 
comfortable for all users             

Strategic Work Plan 2.1.1 Continue review of the 
Comprehensive Service Review suggestions to improve 
services           X 

Strategic Work Plan 2.1.2 Plan for 2021 service changes 
and ensure each mode meets the goals of creating a 
positive transportation experience for all   X X X   X 
Objective 2.2 - Establish a culture of customer service and 
deliver services that are responsive to community needs.             

Strategic Work Plan 2.2.1 Benchmark route performance 
and discontinue or adjust low performing routes           X 
Objective 2.3 - Strive to look for ways to improve service 
through a variety of tools including outreach, community 
meetings, service review and passenger amenities             

Strategic Work Plan 2.3.1 Review Dial-a-Ride services and 
hours to ensure efficiency and availability of resources       X   X 

Strategic Work Plan 2.3.2 Conduct outreach for all 
service changes X         X 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 31



Page | 12 
 

Strategic Work Plan 2.3.3 Improve passenger amenities 
by providing apps and on-line scheduling     X X   X 
Objective 2.4 - Seek new opportunities to enhance the 
riders' experience through better route planning and 
additional services when feasible             

Strategic Work Plan 2.4.1 Seek pilot route opportunities 
to reach more riders X         X 

Strategic Work Plan 2.4.2 Expand Zipper route time to 
8:00am - 5:00 pm   X   X   X 

Strategic Work Plan 2.4.3 Allyn Transit Parking Lot 
planning   X         
Goal 3: Financial Stewardship 
Objective 3.1 - Operate an efficient, cost-effective system             

Strategic Work Plan 3.1.1 Prepare for potential revenue 
impacts           X 
Objective 3.2 - Maintain internal controls and compliance 
over public resources             

Strategic Work Plan 3.2.1 Ensure compliance of 2019-
2021 grant contracts           X 

Strategic Work Plan 3.2.2 Review and renew leases for T-
CC and Johns Prairie tenants   X       X 

Strategic Work Plan 3.2.3 Continued work in records 
management cleanup           X 
Objective 3.3 - Provide current, accurate and transparent 
financial data             

Strategic Work Plan 3.3.1 Provide accurate, timely 
financial reports to the Board and the public           X 
Objective 3.4 - Strive for a 5-year sustainability plan             

Strategic Work Plan 3.4.1 Review 5-year sustainability 
plan and adjust as needed           X 
Objective 3.5 - Plan for future operational and capital needs 
through maintaining financial reserves             

Strategic Work Plan 3.5.1 Transferring excess revenue to 
reserves for future operating and capital needs.   X       X 
Objective 3.6 - Proficiency in regulatory requirements 
through continuing education             

Strategic Work Plan 3.6.1 Procurement training for 
Public Works projects, prevailing wage requirements and 
FTA compliance           X 

Strategic Work Plan 3.6.2 Complete the competitive 
purchases analysis for FTA compliance           X 
Objective 3.7 - Manage key financial indicators             

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 32



Page | 13 
 

Strategic Work Plan 3.7.1 Identify needed financial 
policies or manual to outline financial objectives           X 
Goal 4: Community Partnerships 
Objective 4.1 - Cultivate partnerships throughout the 
community             

Strategic Work Plan 3.1.1 Prepare for potential revenue 
impacts   X   X   X 
Objective 4.2 - Participate in outside committees, regional 
planning organizations and boards             

Strategic Work Plan 3.2.1 Ensure compliance of 2019-
2021 grant contracts           X 

Strategic Work Plan 3.2.2 Review and renew leases for T-
CC and Johns Prairie tenants           X 

Strategic Work Plan 3.2.3 Continued work in records 
management cleanup           X 
Objective 4.3 - Participate in mentorship programs at local 
schools and colleges             

Strategic Work Plan 4.3.1 Staff share knowledge of the 
transit industry and job opportunities through mentorship 
programs and job fairs. X X         
Objective 4.4 - Exemplify exceptional customer service that 
goes above and beyond             

Strategic Work Plan 4.4.1 Training throughout the 
agency to ensure highest standards of customer service.   X   X   X 
Objective 4.5 - Provide transportation choices and support 
travel that uses less energy, produces fewer pollutants and 
reduces greenhouse gases in the region             

Strategic Work Plan 4.5.2 Seek opportunity through 
federal and state grants for electric or hybrid service 
vehicles         X   

Strategic Work Plan 4.5.1 Continue seeking 
opportunities to add electric infrastructure to MTA 
facilities         X   
Objective 4.6 - Support efforts to mitigate traffic 
congestion throughout the region             

Strategic Work Plan 4.6.1 Support groups like the PRTPO 
as well as partnering with other entities to help mitigate 
traffic. This includes using MTA's park & ride project for 
transit rider option to single occupant travel. X   X X X   
Objective 4.7 - Cooperative relationships with T-CC tenants 
and events             

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 33



Page | 14 
 

Strategic Work Plan 4.7.1 Continue support to the 
tenants and promotion of events. X         X 
Goal 5: Workplace Culture of Excellence 
Objective 5.1 - Provide an atmosphere where employees 
are valued and respected             

Strategic Work Plan 5.1.1 Enhance meaningful employee 
recognition.           X 

Strategic Work Plan 5.1.2 Ensure policies are up-to-date 
and current through a regular review cycle.           X 
Objective 5.2 - Develop and empower employees             

Strategic Work Plan 5.2.1 Promote skills and job 
knowledge through webinars, conferences and training.   X X     X 
Objective 5.3 - Support the philosophy of team culture             

Strategic Work Plan 5.3.1 Bargain contracts   X   X   X 
Objective 5.4 - Promote healthy dialogue on important 
issues             

Strategic Work Plan 5.4.1 Improve communications 
through established methods and monitor outcome 
through a survey.   X       X 
Objective 5.5 - Encourage an active and engaged 
environment including Board of Directors             

Strategic Work Plan 5.5.1 Provide more Belfair 
interaction and oversight.             

Strategic Work Plan 5.5.2 Board participation through 
designated committees. X X X X   X 
Objective 5.6 - Be an employer of choice in Mason County             

Strategic Work Plan 5.6.1 Continue the Employee 
Engagement Committee for seeking opportunities to 
improve the work environment.   X       X 

Strategic Work Plan 5.6.2 Incorporate strategies for 
work/life balance in MTA's wellness program and 
encourage participation.           X 

 

Local Performance Measures and Targets 
 

MTA uses various tools to measure performance by looking for key issues and 
opportunities that may impact the goals of the Agency. Performance indicators may 
relate to such things as funding, demographic changes, ridership decline or 
employee shortage. Measuring performance allows the agency leadership team to 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 34



Page | 15 
 

look for ways to minimize the impact of shortfalls and strategize ways to meet the 
strategic goals and objectives.  

Transit Asset Management plan is used as a method to maintain and guide decisions 
on the agency’s assets, most importantly, rolling stock. 

Table 3:  2020 – 2025 Performance Measurements and Targets 
Performance Measure Target 

Technology Amenities 

Install CAD/AVL in all revenue vehicles                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Install tablets on all revenue vehicles                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
Provide apps and icons on the MTA website for customers to schedule 

Passenger Amenities 

Install lighting in all shelters                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
Construct or improve park and ride lots throughout Mason County to create 
convenient, safe locations for riders to park that will then increase ridership.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

Collisions Collisions per 100,00 revenue miles less than or equal to 1. 
Alternative Fuels Convert 10% of fleet to green, environmentally friendly alternative by 2025. 
Transit Productivity Benchmark of 8 passengers per service hour; 39,000 rides per month.   
Vehicle State of Good Repair Maintain 80% of the rolling stock within a state of good repair.   
Service Hours To maintain current levels of service hours at 1,300 per week. 

 

Plan Consistency 
 

Mason Transit Authority is a voting member of the Peninsula Regional 
Transportation Planning Organization (PRTPO) and participates in the planning of 
regional project, policies and program decisions. Information regarding MTA is 
submitted to the PRTPO’s Coordinated Public Transit-Human Services 
Transportation Plan to align the with region’s goals. Projects are submitted to the 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program. 

Within Mason County, the Mason County Comprehensive Plan is used to 
coordinate consistency. MTA submits information to the Plan as required. 

Throughout the region, MTA coordinates with other connecting transits as well as 
efforts to align with the ferry systems, Amtrak and Greyhound.  

MTA continued efforts in strategic planning and implementation of goals, 
objectives and work plans.  Annually, we review the work plan to create projects to 
meet the goals of constant adherence to guidance provided through local, state 
and federal oversight implementing all service planning and effective/efficient 
changes, fleet replacement standards, facility upgrade and modernization planning 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 35



Page | 16 
 

and implementation, policy development and modification, and procedural 
standards.  

MTA incorporates the Transportation System Policy Goals throughout all strategies. 
These goals as addressed in RCW 14.04.280 include preservation, safety, mobility, 
environment, and stewardship.  

Planned Capital Expenses 
 

The table below reflects planned capital expenses for 2020-2025. 

Table 4 – Planned Capital Expenses 
 

Year 
Received/Expensed Type 

Preservation/Replacement 
(quantity) 

Expansion/Improvement 
(quantity) 

Rolling Stock 
2020 Light-duty Cutaways 9   
2020 40 ' Coaches 2   
2020 Mini-cutaway   1 
2021 Light-duty Cutaways 6   
2021 35' Coaches 4   
2022 N/A     
2023 N/A     
2024 35' Coaches 2   
2025 N/A     

Equipment 
2020 Copy Machine 1   
2021 Scissor lift for T-CC   1 

2021 
Generator to power Johns 

Prairie   1 
2022 Generator to power T-CC   1 

Facilities and Infrastructure 
2021 North Mason Base   1 
2021 Radich building roof repair 1   
2023 Allyn Park & Ride   1 
2024 Bus Wash    1 

2025 
Administration building upgrade 

or replacement   1 
 

 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 36



Page | 17 
 

Planned Operating Changes 
 

At the time of preparing MTA’s Transit Development Plan, the agency is 
uncertain of the ability to plan expansion due to the pandemic and the 
unknown outcome of I-976, both of which have the potential to reduce 
revenue to the system, which would result in a reduction of service. The agency 
is planning for a reduction in 2021 due to I-976 but is taking the approach of 
looking for ways to improve the system. This approach will include looking for 
new areas for potential routes, increasing frequency on popular routes, lining 
up time points with major employers and exploring more efficient ways to 
deliver service. 

Table 5 outlines Mason Transit’s planned operating changes for 2020-2025. 

Table 5 – Planned Operating Changes 
 

Year Type Reduction Expansion/Improvement 

2020 
Implement service changes that include more 
Zipper hours of service and adjusted DAR hours   X 

2020 
Add a route to a high use area that is now served 
by DAR   X 

2020 Adjust express routes to better fit needs of riders   X 

2021 
Adjust route to serve new park & ride facility 
opening   X 

2021 Revise service hours based on impact of I-976 X   
2022 No service changes planned     
2023 Add service previously cut back as funding allows   X 
2024 No service changes planned     

2025 
Conduct an assessment of current service and 
adjust as needed   X 

 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 37



Page | 18 
 

Multiyear Financial Plan 

Capital Improvement: 
 The Park and Ride Development Project is expected to be completed in the 2021-

2023 Biennium. 
 Additional vehicle replacements are expected to be funded at 80% with a 20% 

match from local funds.  

Facility improvements, preservation and expansion that extend the life of the 
building according to MTA’s capitalization standards are expected to be funded 
by grants with local funds used as match. Building repairs or replacement to 
such equipment will be funded by reserves and appropriated through the capital 
budget presented annually. 

Table 6 – Capital Purchases 
 

 

Capital Expenditure 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Cutaways 990,000     660,000     
Coaches 1,020,000 4,080,000 1,020,000 
Mini cutaway 82,000       
Copy Machine 7,000          
Scissor Lift 15,000       
Generators 100,000     100,000     
North Mason Base 1,750,000 
Radich Roof Repair 35,000       
Allyn Park & Ride 1,000,000 
Bus Wash facillity 500,000     
Park & Ride Development 3,847,379 1,992,612 1,542,500 771,250     

Administration building 
upgrade or replacement 2,500,000 

Total Capital Expenditures 5,946,379 8,632,612 1,642,500 1,771,250 1,520,000 2,500,000 

Capital Revenue 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Federal Competitive 1,507,500 3,555,000 800,000     1,216,000 2,000,000 
State Grants 3,646,147 2,521,250 1,542,500 771,250     
Local Funds 792,732     1,335,000 100,000     200,000     304,000     500,000     
Total Revenue 5,946,379 7,411,250 1,642,500 1,771,250 1,520,000 2,500,000 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 38



Page | 19 
 

Operating Financial Assumptions through 2025 
 Local Sales Tax –While the average growth rate of sales tax revenue has been 8% 

over the past five years, to remain conservative, a 3% growth rate has been used 
to project out through 2025.  

 Operating Grants – State grant funds are anticipated to be reduce due to impact 
of I-976. At time of preparing the TDP, MTA has not included state funds in revenue 
projects beginning July 1, 2021. 

 Fares – Assumed 1% growth beginning in 2022. 
 Expended Reserves – Based on current projections expended reserves are deemed 

necessary to meet current service levels. Services designated for operating will 
expend in early 2022. 

 Salaries and Benefits – Based on union contracts through 2021 and non-
represented compensation assumptions, then assumed 2.5% growth through 2025. 

 Insurance – Used 5-year trend. 
 T-CC Expenses – 2.5% growth for expenses other than wages and benefits through 

2025. 
 Other Goods and Services – Assumed 2.5% growth. 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 39



Page | 20 
 

Table 7 – Operating  

 

MTA designates reserves for future capital and operating expenditures, 
emergency funds, grant match obligations and general liabilities. At the end of 
2019, the cash reserve balance invested was $10,000,000, which was an 
increase of approximately 48% over the balance at the end of 2018. It is 
anticipated operating reserves currently set aside will be exhausted by the end 
of 2022 and require additional service reductions. This outcome is the result of 
the anticipated loss of state funds due to I-976 impacts. 

 

 

 

Operating Revenues
2020 

Budget
2021 

Projected
2022 

Projected
2023 

Projected
2024 

Projected
2025 

Projected
Sales Tax 4,054,264 3,973,179 4,092,374   4,215,145   4,341,600   4,471,848   
Farebox 105,000     105,000     106,050       107,111       108,182       109,263       
Worker/Driver - Vanpool 260,000     260,000     262,600       265,226       267,878       270,557       
State Operating Grants 1,390,600 695,304     
Federal Operating Grants 1,658,688 1,436,854 1,465,027   1,494,328   1,524,215   1,554,699   
Other 291,030     348,597     359,055       369,827       380,921       392,349       
Transfers from Reserves 130,406     1,639,011 830,583       

Total Operating Revenues 7,889,988 8,457,945 7,115,689   6,451,636   6,622,795   6,798,716   
Annual % Change 7% -16% -9% 3% 3%

Operating and 
Maintenance Expenses 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Fixed Route Preservation 
and Maintenance 4,650,463 5,024,681 3,894,128   3,991,481   4,091,268   4,193,550   
Demand Response (DAR) 
Preservation and 
Maintenance 1,953,583 2,109,870 1,635,149   1,676,028   1,717,928   1,760,877   
Worker/Driver 
Preservation and 
Maintenance 1,046,043 1,077,424 1,104,360   1,131,969   1,160,268   1,189,275   
Vanpool Preservation and 
Maintenance 71,240       72,665       74,481         76,343         78,252         80,208         
Other 166,639     173,305     177,638       182,079       186,630       191,296       

Total Operating Expenses 7,889,988 8,457,945 6,885,756   7,057,900   7,234,347   7,415,206   

Profit (Loss) -              -              229,933       (606,263)     (611,552)     (616,490)     

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 40



Page | 21 
 

Projects of Regional Significance 
 

Mason Transit Authority has one major project of regional significance. In 
2014, MTA was awarded funds to construct new park & ride lots and upgrade 
existing lots with security enhancements, passenger amenities and increased 
stalls. 

Agency History, Organizational Structure, 
Accomplishments, Outlook and Outreach Coordination 

 

Mason County Public Transportation Benefit Area, doing business as Mason 
Transit Authority (MTA), is a Public Transportation Benefit Area (PTBA), 
authorized in Chapter 36.57A RCW. Located in Mason County, Washington, 
the Mason County voters approved the PTBA in November 1991 and began 
public transportation service in December 1992.  The service area includes all 
of Mason County, if road access is available, with connections to adjacent 
counties. 

The proposition imposing a sales and use tax of two-tenths of one percent 
(0.2%) to fund public transportation was also passed in 1991, creating a 
prepaid fare system service. In the aftermath of Initiative 695 and the 
elimination of Motor Vehicle Excise Tax that was available to transits, the voters 
were asked to approve an additional four-tenths of one percent increase 
(0.4%) in 1999. The first attempt failed but was successful when County 
residents responded with an approval of the additional sales tax increase on 
September 18, 2001. This raised the taxing base to six-tenths of one percent 
(0.6%) or $.06 on every $10 of retail sales, effective January 1, 2002. MTA then 
began to charge a fare, but only for routes going out-of-county. 

Board of Directors: 
The Mason County Public Transportation Benefit Authority Board of Directors is 
composed of ten members as follows: 

 Three (3) elected members representing Mason County Commissioners; 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 41



Page | 22 
 

 One (1) elected member representing the City of Shelton Council; 
 Five (5) members who shall be elected officials selected by the Mason County 

Commissioners with the goal of seeking equal voting representation among 
the County Commissioner Districts. The recommendation was approved by 
Mason County and the City of Shelton pursuant to Resolutions Nos. 71-17 and 
1112-1217, respectively; and 

 In accordance with revisions made to RCW 36.57A.050, there shall be one (1) 
non-voting labor representative recommended by the labor organization 
representing the public transportation employees. 

Mason County Public Transportation Benefit Authority (MTA) Board Members at time of 
publication are: 

 Wes Martin, Grapeview School District (Chair) 
 Sharon Trask, Mason County Commissioner (Vice Chair) 
 Randy Neatherlin, Mason County Commissioner  
 Kevin Shutty, Mason County Commissioner 
 Kevin Dorcy, City of Shelton Council Member 
 John Campbell, North Mason School District  
 Deborah Petersen, Hood Canal School District 
 Sandy Tarzwell, Shelton School District 
 Matt Jewett, Southside School District 
 Greg Heidel, Bargaining Unit Representative 

Citizen Adviser to the Board: 
Effective January 1, 2019, there may be one (1) non-voting representative of the 
public residing in Mason County, Washington, as a citizen adviser to the Board. 
The citizen adviser to the Board shall serve for a period of one year (unless 
extended by motion by the Authority Board).  

At the time of publication of the Transit Development Plan, the position of the 
Citizen Adviser to the Board was filled by: 

 John Piety 

Public Outreach: 
MTA staff is committed to public engagement and transparency through robust public 
interaction that informs, involves, and empowers people and communities. Staff 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 42



Page | 23 
 

participate in several opportunities to promote and educate citizens through the 
following methods: 

 Public meetings 
 Media – outreach 
 Radio spots 
 Community events and meetings 
 Presentations 
 Website improvements 

 
The public outreach program includes: 
 Developing an awareness of MTA services with non-riders through 

presentations, media and community events. 
 Engaging riders and the general public by soliciting feedback through active 

seeking of information by face-to-face interaction and surveys. 
 Seeking opportunities to increase ridership amongst riders of choice. 
 Visiting businesses to discover way to assist their employees with 

transportation, either by using vanpool, fixed-route or Dial-a-Ride. 
 Promoting positive public image in the community and build relationships 

throughout. 
 Conducting Community Conversations to give the public opportunity to give 

input, suggestions and ask questions about MTA. 
 Public Hearings for service changes, Transit Development Plan (TDP), fare 

changes, and other topics that impact citizens. 
 
There are comment cards on MTA vehicles to be filled out and submitted as a method 
to communicate compliments, complaints or other information a rider wants staff to 
be aware. Management or designated staff responds to the individual comment cards 
as appropriate.  
 
Citizens may contact MTA through customer service or to an individual by the 
following methods: 
 Email: mta@masontransit.org 
 Phone: 360-427-5033 or 360-426-9434 or 800-374-3747 
 TTY/TTD: 711 or 800-833-6388 
 Website: www.masontransit.org 
 
Individual staff members may be contacted through using the website or phone to 
locate email addresses or phone extensions. 
 
For ADA needs, citizens may use the website or call customer service for assistance. 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 43

http://www.masontransit.org/


Page | 24 
 

2019 Accomplishments: 
The following chart lists major accomplishments by MTA during 2019.  

Table 9 – 2019 Accomplishments 
  State Goal Areas 
2019 Accomplishments toward State Goal Areas 

Ec
on

om
ic

 V
ita

lit
y 

Pr
es

er
va

tio
n 

Sa
fe

ty
 

M
ob

ili
ty

 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

St
ew

ar
ds

hi
p 

Administration 
Updated server, installed new desktops and other IT 
upgrades 

          X 

Reorganized records vault and began records 
management 

          X 

Wage analysis on non-represented employees, 
maintenance and drivers 

          X 

Restructured finance department for better efficiency           X 
Improved on-boarding process for drivers     X     X 
Lowered turn-over rate           X 
Updated 18 policies; created 6 new policies           X 
Created Employee Engagement Committee; re-established 
Wellness Committee 

          X 

Outreach 
Staff participation on outside committees to promote 
transit 

X           

Participated in local events X           
Presentations on Transit to community organizations   X   X     
Community Conversations with public X X   X   X 
Public Meetings for service changes, roundabout project 
and North Mason Park & Ride 

X X   X     

Outreach to major employers in the region to coordinate 
work and bus schedules 

X     X     

T-CC 
Passenger information Kiosk installed with monitor, 
charging station, electronic sign for passenger information 
and one for estimated arrival times 

  X       X 

Parking lot proposal released; soil testing completed X X         
Operations 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 44



Page | 25 
 

Reviewed recommendations from the Comprehensive 
Service Review 

X X X X   X 

Eliminated non-productive routes X X   X   X 
Created the Zipper route to provide a shorter, more 
frequent route 

X     X     

Addressed frequency of fixed route as requested in the 
survey done during the Comprehensive Service Review 

      X     

Lined up fixed route times in Olympia and Bremerton to 
better serve large employers 

      X     

Begin pilot route planning X     X     
Added another Operations Supervisor to make sure 
coverage is available during hours of operation 

    X       

Outlined supervisor training to ensure success of the 
operations team 

    X     X 

Consistent driver training - lowered rate of accidents per 
100k miles 

    X       

Semi-annual driver evaluations     X       
Upgraded cameras on coaches for safety and to expand 
storage for footage 

    X       

Maintenance 
Installed LED lighting in shop   X X   X   
New roofs on building 1 and 2   X         
Installed new door hoods   X X       
Created separate work/break areas           X 
Installed solar lighting in additional shelters     X       
Purchased coolers for shop   X X     X 
Replaced gate to bus lot for safety     X       
Chip sealed bus parking lot and driveway   X         
L&I Training and tech training     X     X 
Bus replacement builds for 9 cutaways, 4 coaches and mini 
cutaway 

  X X       

Major Projects 
Bus Technology - continue progress in installing tablets, 
CAD/AVL, new scheduling software, passenger counters 

  X X X     

Park & Ride Development - continued with new 
construction of park & ride lots and retro-fitting, 
upgrading existing lots 

X X X X   X 

T-CC Parking Lot - released RFP and continued work with 
Department of Ecology for the Voluntary Cleanup Program 

X X X   X   

New bus shelters add in 5 locations     X   X   
 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 45



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 1 – Actionable 
Subject:    Shelton Matlock Road Park & Ride Project - GCB 3332 
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    August 18, 2020 
 
 
Background: 
 
As part of the original scope of the US 101 Coffee Creek Fish Barrier Removal project as 
described in Contract 009018, the contractor was required to move the existing park 
and ride to another location of MTA’s choice and perform in-kind work to restore the 
30-stall park & ride. In MTA’s Park & Ride Development project, Shelton-Matlock was to 
include additional stall, lighting, security cameras and a bus shelter. MTA believes it is in 
the best interest of both parties that WSDOT perform additional construction 
improvements in connection with the park and ride with the following additions: 
 

• Increase stalls from 30 (required in-kind) to 65 stalls; 
• Construction pavement; 
• Sidewalk; 
• ADA facilities; 
• Pads for bus shelter; 
• Stormwater facilities; 
• Signing; 
• Striping, 
• Illumination bases and conduit stubs only;  
• Service cabinet base and conduit stubs only; and 
• Other miscellaneous items as listed in Exhibit A to the agreement. 

 
This contract has been reviewed by Legal Counsel. 
 
 
Summary:  Approve Agreement No. GCB3332 and authorize General Manager 
to sign agreement.  
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
$557,449.13 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 46



Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2020-16 that 
approves Agreement No. GCB3332 and authorizes the General Manager to sign that 
Agreement.  
 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 47



DOT Form 224-065
Revised 11/2018

Local Agency  
Participating Agreement 

Work by WSDOT —  
Actual Cost

Local Agency Name & Address

Agreement Number Section/Location

State Route Control Section Number
for the Local Agency Work by Local Agency?

  Yes  No

Region

Advance Payment Required?  Yes  No

Advance Payment Amount

WSDOT LOCAL AGENCY

the “Parties” and individually as the “Party”.

Recitals

construction contract for the state route improvement.

3. The Local Agency is obligated for the cost of the Work described herein.

Mason Transit Authority 
790 E Johns Prairie Rd 
Shelton, WA 98584

GCB 3332 US 101 Shelton Matlock Interchange T20N.,T04W, Section 24

101 230100

Olympic

N/A

Construction of a relocated park and ride near the interchange of US 101 and 
Shelton Matlock road will include new park and ride construction pavement, 
sidewalk, ADA facilities, bus shelters - pads only, stormwater facilities, signing, 
striping, illumination bases and conduit stubs only, service cabinet base and 
conduit stubs only, and other work as detailed in exhibit A.

Tumwater Project Office Mason Transit Authority

John Romero Danette Brannin

Construction Project Engineer Tumwater General Manager

821 Airport Cr SE 
Tumwater, WA 98501

790 E Johns Prairie Rd 
Shelton, WA 98584

ROMEROJ@wsdot.wa.gov dbrannin@masontransit.org

360-570-6750 360-432-5750

August 14, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg; Pg. 48August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 48



DOT Form 224-065
Revised 11/2018

Now, Therefore, pursuant to RCW 47.28.140 and/or chapter 39.34 RCW and in consideration of the terms, 

are incorporated and made a part hereof,

It Is Mutually Agreed As Follows:

accordance with Section 6.

the proposed Ad date.

or if the Local Agency has not acquired all right of way and permits required to construct, maintain,and 

reimbursement payments in accordance with Section 6.

August 14, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg; Pg. 49August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 49



DOT Form 224-065
Revised 11/2018

2. Bid, Award, and Cost Adjustments

satisfaction.

shall delete

receipt of all reimbursement payments in accordance with Section 6. The Local Agency agrees that 

3. Construction

provide all services and tools, including but not limited to construction administration, inspection, 
materials testing, and representation, necessary to administer and manage the contract to ensure that 
the Work is constructed in accordance with the contract.

have access to all documentation concerning the Work. The Local Agency shall not provide direction, 

3.4 The Local Agency may inspect the Work. Any costs for such inspection shall be borne solely by the 

August 14, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg; Pg. 50August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 50



DOT Form 224-065
Revised 11/2018

4. Contract Changes

current edition.

4.2 Required changes involve such changes in quantities or alterations to the Work as are necessary to 
 

elective changes.

 
Section 6.

possible and provide it with an opportunity, if time permits, to review the change before implementation. 

avoid delay to the contractor.

implement the requested changes as elective changes, provided that a change does not negatively 

changes in accordance with Section 6.

 
to the Work.

that the Work cannot proceed, the Work shall be brought to a level that is safe for public use and 

The Local Agency agrees to pay all costs associated with termination, including contractor claims, in 
accordance with Section 6.

5. Acceptance

Local Agency agrees, upon satisfactory completion of the Work and receipt of a Notice of Physical 

administering the Work.

Twenty 20

August 14, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg; Pg. 51August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 51



DOT Form 224-065
Revised 11/2018

within   Working 

acceptance.

6. Payment

will resolve any discrepancies.

6.4 Advance Payment

Increase in Cost

written amendment to address the increase pursuant to Section 10.1, or implement Section 4.8.

7. Right of Entry

employees, a right of entry upon all land in which the Local Agency has an interest for the purpose of 

subcontractors, and employees, a right of entry upon all land in which the Local Agency has an interest 

terms of this Section 7.2 shall survive the termination  
of this Agreement.

8. Claims
8.1 Claims for Additional Payment

8.1.1 In the event the contractor makes claims for additional payment associated with the Work, 

Twenty 20

Ten 10

August 14, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg; Pg. 52August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 52



DOT Form 224-065
Revised 11/2018

8.1.2 The Local Agency shall not be obligated to pay such claims or their cost of defense to 

administering the Work.

8.1.3 The Local Agency shall have the right to review and comment on any settlement for claims 

claims. In the event the Local Agency does not agree with the claim settlement as negotiated 

negotiated claim settlement. If agreement cannot be reached between the Local Agency and 

Section 10.7.

at its own cost, and in doing so, the Local Agency agrees to pay any resulting settlement, 

including attorneys fees, incurred in providing such assistance in accordance with Section 6.

8.2 

Work located on the Local Agency’s right of way, the Local Agency shall defend such claims and hold 

negligent acts or omissions independent of the Work performed pursuant to this Agreement.

9. Ownership, Operation, and Maintenance

that portion of the Work located within the Local Agency’s right of way, and the Local Agency shall be 
solely responsible for ownership and all future operation and maintenance of the Work at its sole cost, 

this Agreement.

10. General Provisions
10.1 Amendment

by persons authorized to bind each of the Parties.

10.2 Termination
 

and 2.6.

cancelable obligations.

Parties prior to termination.

10.3 Independent contractor

thereof, shall not in any manner be deemed to be employees of the Local Agency.

August 14, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg; Pg. 53August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 53



DOT Form 224-065
Revised 11/2018

10.4 
employees, authorized agents, and/or contractors, while acting within the scope of their employment 

to the provisions of this Agreement. The Parties shall not be required to indemnify, defend, or hold 

Acceptance of Liability

10.6 Survivability

10.7 

conduct a dispute resolution hearing that shall be informal and unrecorded. An attempt at such dispute 

however, each Party shall be responsible for its own costs and fees.

10.8 
to enforce any right or obligation under this Agreement, the Parties agree that any such action or 
proceedings shall be brought in the superior court situated in  County, 

costs..

10.9 Audits/Records

the Local Agency require copies of any records, it agrees to pay the costs thereof. The Parties agree 

representatives, and/or state of Washington and/or the federal government.

10.10 Term of Agreement

been met.

10.11 

Thurston

August 14, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg; Pg. 54August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 54



DOT Form 224-065
Revised 11/2018

 
last below.

Local Agency
Washington State  

Department of Transportation

 Print Name  Print Name

August 14, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg; Pg. 55August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 55



Total Cost of New Construction $587,427.00

Remaining in Contract 009018 $73,649.00

Sub Total $513,778.00

Sales Tax Rate: 8.50% $43,671.13

Total due to WSDOT $557,449.13

GCB 3332

EXHIBIT A

GCB 3332 EXHIBIT A Page 1 of 2
August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 56



GCB 3332 EXHIBIT A Page 2 of 2
August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 57

p001548F
Snapshot

p001548F
Image

p001548F
Typewritten Text
10-JUN-2020MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITYQUOTE - SHELTON MATLOCK ROAD PARK AND RIDE DEVELOPMENT65 Stall Park & Ride based on SCJ Alliance plans dated Jan 2020

p001548F
Text Box
1216 140th Avenue Court East, Sumner, WA 98390 | Phone: (253) 299-3200 | Fax: (253) 859-5702

p001548F
Line



GCB 3332 

Exhibit B 

 

The Parsons‐Scarsella Joint Venture (PSJV) collaborated with the Mason Transit Authority (MTA) for the 

replacement of the existing 30‐stall park and ride facility located next to US 101 along Shelton‐Matlock 

Road. This replacement is required due to the realignment of the new US 101 southbound off‐ramp. The 

final configuration and location of the Shelton‐Matlock Road Park and Ride has been coordinated with 

and approved by the MTA.  

 

The PSJV is contractually obligated to provide replacement of a 30‐stall park and ride facility as part of 

the original scope of the US 101 Coffee Creek Fish Barrier Removal project, Contract 009018. The MTA 

has since prepared a PS&E package for a 65‐stall park and ride facility with additional upgrades. The 

MTA has provided approval and has grant funding available to pay for the additional work required to 

construct their ultimate 65‐stall park and ride facility.  

 

The additional work required to construct the ultimate 65‐stall park and ride facility includes, but is not 

limited to: grading, surfacing, HMA paving, drainage structures, stormwater conveyance and treatment 

facilities, erosion control, cement concrete traffic curb and gutter, concrete wheel stops, pavement 

markings, landscaping, permanent signing, and illumination. 

 

The following work items are shown in the Plans, but are not to be included in PSJV’s portion of the 

Work, and are to be completed by others at a later date: 

‐ All security equipment – security cameras, cable, security cabinet 

‐ Bus shelters 

‐ Light poles, mast arms, luminaires 

‐ Service cabinet 

‐ Wire 

‐ PUD service 

 

The MTA shall incorporate the additional work required to construct a 65‐stall park and ride facility into 

existing WSDOT Contract 009018. MTA shall reimburse WSDOT the cost difference to construct the 65‐

stall park and ride facility.  

 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 58



MTA - SHELTON MATLOCK A 

MAY 19, 2020 

CONTENTS 

1 

2 

DIVISION 2 
3 

EARTHWORK 
4 

REMOVAL OF STRUCTURES AND OBSTRUCTIONS -------------------------------------- 1 5 

Removal of Obstructions -------------------------------------------------------------------------- 1 6 

Removal of Pavement, Sidewalks, Curbs, and Gutters ------------------------------------ 1 7 

Measurement ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 1 8 

Payment ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 1 9 

DIVISION 8 10 

MISCELLANEOUS CONSTRUCTION 11 

ROADSIDE RESTORATION ------------------------------------------------------------------------ 1 12 

 Materials ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 1 13 

 Topsoil ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 2 14 

 Soil Amendments ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 2 15 

WHEEL STOP ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 4 16 

 Description -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 4 17 

 Materials ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 4 18 

 Submittals --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 4 19 

 Construction Requirements ----------------------------------------------------------------------- 4 20 

 Measurement ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 4 21 

 Payment ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 4 22 

23 

GCB 3332
EXHIBIT C

GCB 3332 EXHIBIT C Page 1 of 5
August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 59



MTA – SHELTON MATLOCK 1 
MAY 19, 2020 

Division 2 1 

Earthwork 2 

3 

Removal of Structures and Obstructions 4 

5 
Section 2-02.3 is supplemented with the following: 6 

7 

(February 17, 1998) 8 

Removal of Obstructions 9 
***  10 
Gravel Removal  292 cubic yards 11 
Relocate PUD 3 Power Pole 1 each 12 

13 
 *** 14 

15 

Removal of Pavement, Sidewalks, Curbs, and Gutters 16 

17 
Section 2-02.3(3) is supplemented with the following: 18 

19 

(September 8, 1997) 20 
The approximate thickness of the *** asphalt *** pavement is *** 4 inches ***. 21 

22 

Measurement 23 

24 

Section 2-02.4 is supplemented with the following: 25 
26 

(September 8, 1997) 27 
Pavement removal will be measured by the square yard. 28 

29 

Payment 30 

31 

Section 2-02.5 is revised by the following: 32 
33 

(September 30, 1996) 34 
"Removing *** Asphalt *** Pavement", per square yard. 35 

36 

Division 8 37 

Miscellaneous Construction 38 

39 

Roadside Restoration 40 
41 

Materials 42 

43 

Section 8-02.2 is supplemented with the following: 44 
45 

Erosion Control and Roadside Planting 46 
47 

Section 9-14 is supplemented with the following: 48 
49 

GCB 3332 EXHIBIT C Page 2 of 5
August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 60



MTA – SHELTON MATLOCK 2 
MAY 19, 2020 

Topsoil 1 
2 

Topsoil Type A 3 
Section 9-14.2(1) is supplemented with the following: 4 

5 

(August 7, 2017) 6 
Topsoil Type A shall meet the following requirements: 7 

8 
1. Cation exchange capacity (CEC) of Topsoil Type A shall be a9 

minimum of 5 milliequivalents CEC/100 g dry soil (U.S. EPA10 
Method 9081).11 

12 
2. Organic content greater than 8-percent but less than 15-percent13 

as measured on a dry weight basis using AASHTO T 26714 
Determination of Organic Content in Soils by Loss on Ignition.15 

16 
Topsoil Type A shall be 60-percent to 70-percent *** 60 %*** Loam and 40-17 
percent to 30-percent *** 40% Fine *** Compost by volume. *** 60% *** 18 
Loam shall be as defined by the US Department of Agriculture Soil 19 
Classification System. 20 

21 
The Contractor shall submit a Particle Size Analysis as a Type 1 Working 22 
Drawing from an independent accredited soils testing laboratory indicating 23 
the Material source and compliance with all Topsoil Type A specifications. 24 
The laboratory analysis shall be with a sample size of no less than 2 pounds. 25 

26 
The *** 40% Fine *** Compost shall conform to the requirements of Section 27 
9-14.4(8).28 

29 
30 

Topsoil 31 

32 

Topsoil Type A 33 
34 

Section 8-02.3(4)A is supplemented with the following: 35 
36 

(August 3, 2015) 37 
Topsoil Type A shall be placed to a non-compacted depth of *** 18 *** inches. 38 
The topsoil shall be thoroughly blended prior to placement. 39 

40 
The Contractor shall submit a Type 1 Working Drawing consisting of 41 
independent test results from an accredited laboratory demonstrating the Topsoil 42 
Type A meets the requirements of Section 9-14.1(1).  The Type 1 Working 43 
Drawing shall also include the Request for Approval of Material in accordance 44 
with Section 1-06.1(2). 45 

46 

Soil Amendments 47 

48 

Fertilizers 49 
50 

Section 8-02.3(6)B is supplemented with the following: 51 

GCB 3332 EXHIBIT C Page 3 of 5
August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 61



MTA – SHELTON MATLOCK 3 
MAY 19, 2020 

1 

(September 3, 2019) 2 
Fertilizer shall be a commercially prepared mix of 10-20-20 and shall be applied 3 
at the rate of 10 pounds per 1000 square feet. 4 

5 

Seeding and Fertilizing 6 
7 

(September 3, 2019) 8 
Seed of the following mix, rate, and analysis shall be applied at the rates shown 9 
below on all areas requiring ***hydro*** seeding within the project: 10 

11 
Seed by Common Name, 12 
(Botanical Name), and Pounds Pure Live Seed 13 
“Source Identification” (PLS) Per Acre 14 

15 
*** 40% Jaguar Tall Fescue 70 16 

17 
30% Barclay Perennial Ryegrass 52 18 

19 
25% Red Creeping Fescue 44 20 

21 
5% Highland Colonial Bentgrass 9 22 

23 
Total 175 *** 24 

25 
Source Identified seed shall be generation four or less.  Non-Source Identified 26 
seed shall meet or exceed Washington State Department of Agriculture Certified 27 
Seed Standards and be from within the appropriate genetic zones of the *** 7.0 28 
*** Ecoregion(s) as defined by the US Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). 29 

30 
The seed certification class shall be Certified (blue tag) in accordance with WAC 31 
16-302 and meet the following requirements:32 

33 
Prohibited Weed 0% max. 34 
Noxious Weed 0% max. 35 
Other Weed 0.20% max. 36 
Other Crop 0.40% max. 37 

38 
The Contractor shall document all Source Identified seed by providing the 39 
Association of Official Seed Certifying Agents (AOSCA) yellow seed label for 40 
each species in the mix.  Site Identification Logs can be supplied for collections 41 
where the AOSCA yellow label is not available. 42 

43 

(September 3, 2019) 44 
Grass seed shall be a commercially prepared mix, made up of low growing 45 
species which will grow without irrigation at the project location, and accepted 46 
by the Engineer.  The application rate shall be two pounds per 1000 square feet. 47 

48 

GCB 3332 EXHIBIT C Page 4 of 5
August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 62



MTA – SHELTON MATLOCK  4 
MAY 19, 2020 

Replace 8-19 vacant with 1 

 2 

(WSF August 29, 2014) 3 

Wheel Stop 4 

 5 

Description 6 
This Work shall consist of furnishing and installing concrete precast wheel stops as shown on 7 
the Plans or approved equal and as staked by the Engineer. 8 
 9 

Materials 10 
Wheel stops shall be cast of Commercial concrete.  Each wheel stop shall be cast as shown 11 
on the Plans. 12 
 13 
Minimum reinforcement for each wheel stop shall be 2 No. 4 bars placed longitudinally.  14 
Reinforcing steel shall conform to Section 9-07.2. 15 
 16 
Dowels for anchoring the wheel stop in place shall be 1 foot long No. 5 reinforcing bars, 17 
conforming to Section 9-07.2. 18 
 19 

Submittals 20 
If the Contractor elects to use a precast wheel stop that differs from the details in the 21 
Plans, a Type 2 Working Drawing consisting of a catalog cut of the product shall be 22 
submitted. 23 

 24 

Construction Requirements 25 
The precast wheel stop shall be set in place on top of the pavement with both ends bearing 26 
evenly on the same as shown on the Plans and as staked by the Engineer. A steel dowel shall 27 
be driven into the underlying pavement through the pre-drilled hole at each end of the wheel 28 
stop. 29 
 30 

Measurement 31 
Wheel stops will be measured per each. 32 
 33 

Payment 34 
Payment will be made in accordance with Section 1-09.3 for the following bid item: 35 

 36 
"Wheel Stop," per Each. 37 

 38 

GCB 3332 EXHIBIT C Page 5 of 5
August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 63



OREGON

WASHINGTON

STATE

COVER SHEET

M. KNECHT

0738.5-CV-1-M

CV-1

1

SHELTON, WASHINGTON

MASON COUNTY

MATLOCK ROAD

PARK AND RIDE DEVELOPMENT

NOTES

PROJECT SITE

DATUM SURVEY NOTES

CONSULTANTS

OWNER/APPLICANT UTILITIES SITE DATA

DRAWING FILE No.:

ISSUE DATE:DESIGNED BY:BYDATEREVISIONS

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

PROJECT NAME:

OF

DRAWING No.:

SHEET No.:

JOB No.:

ALL DIMENSIONS

SHOWN IN FEET

UNLESS OTHERWISE

DESIGNATED 8730 TALLON LANE NE, SUITE 200,  LACEY, WASHINGTON 98516
P: 360-352-1465    F: 360-352-1509

SCJALLIANCE.COM

MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY

MATLOCK ROAD

PARK AND RIDE DEVELOPMENT

M. KNECHT

P. HOLM

JAN 2020

0738.05

11

T. 20 N., R. 03 W., S 20, W.M.

Sheet List Table

GCB 3332 
EXHIBIT D

GCB 3332 EXHIBIT D Page 1 of 11
August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 64



LEGENDLEGEND

C

REMOVAL KEY NOTES

EXISTING UTILITY  LEGEND

C

C

C

C

SCALE IN FEET

0 20 40

CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE

DRAWING FILE No.:

ISSUE DATE:DESIGNED BY:BYDATEREVISIONS

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

PROJECT NAME:

OF

DRAWING No.:

SHEET No.:

JOB No.:

ALL DIMENSIONS

SHOWN IN FEET

UNLESS OTHERWISE

DESIGNATED 8730 TALLON LANE NE, SUITE 200,  LACEY, WASHINGTON 98516
P: 360-352-1465    F: 360-352-1509

SCJALLIANCE.COM

MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY

MATLOCK ROAD

PARK AND RIDE DEVELOPMENT

M. KNECHT

P. HOLM

JAN 2020

0738.05

11

T. 20 N., R. 03 W., S 20, W.M.

REMOVAL AND TESC PLAN

M. KNECHT

0738.5-EC-1-M

EC-1

2

A
-
L
I
N

E

(
W

 
H

U
L
B

E
R

T
 
R

D
)

GCB 3332 EXHIBIT D Page 2 of 11
August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 65



REMOVAL AND TESC DETAILS

M.KNECHT

0738.5-EC-2-M

EC-2

3

DRAWING FILE No.:

ISSUE DATE:DESIGNED BY:BYDATEREVISIONS

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

PROJECT NAME:

OF

DRAWING No.:

SHEET No.:

JOB No.:

ALL DIMENSIONS

SHOWN IN FEET

UNLESS OTHERWISE

DESIGNATED 8730 TALLON LANE NE, SUITE 200,  LACEY, WASHINGTON 98516
P: 360-352-1465    F: 360-352-1509

SCJALLIANCE.COM

MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY

MATLOCK ROAD

PARK AND RIDE DEVELOPMENT

M. KNECHT

P. HOLM

JAN 2020

0738.05

11

T. 20 N., R. 03 W., S 20, W.M.

MASON EROSION CONTROL NOTES:

GCB 3332 EXHIBIT D Page 3 of 11
August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 66



LEGENDLEGEND

STALL COUNT SUMMARY

POINT TABLE POINT TABLE POINT TABLE

SITE PLAN AND HORIZONTAL CONTROL PLAN

M. KNECHT

0738.5-SP-1-M

SP-1

4

SCALE IN FEET

0 20 40

CONSTRUCTION NOTES

NOTES

DRAWING FILE No.:

ISSUE DATE:DESIGNED BY:BYDATEREVISIONS

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

PROJECT NAME:

OF

DRAWING No.:

SHEET No.:

JOB No.:

ALL DIMENSIONS

SHOWN IN FEET

UNLESS OTHERWISE

DESIGNATED 8730 TALLON LANE NE, SUITE 200,  LACEY, WASHINGTON 98516
P: 360-352-1465    F: 360-352-1509

SCJALLIANCE.COM

MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY

MATLOCK ROAD

PARK AND RIDE DEVELOPMENT

M. KNECHT

P. HOLM

JAN 2020

0738.05

11

T. 20 N., R. 03 W., S 20, W.M.

A
-
L
I
N

E

(
W

 
H

U
L
B

E
R

T
 
R

O
A

D
)

GCB 3332 EXHIBIT D Page 4 of 11
August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 67



SITE PLAN DETAILS

M. KNECHT

0738.5-SP-2-M

SP-2

5

DRAWING FILE No.:

ISSUE DATE:DESIGNED BY:BYDATEREVISIONS

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

PROJECT NAME:

OF

DRAWING No.:

SHEET No.:

JOB No.:

ALL DIMENSIONS

SHOWN IN FEET

UNLESS OTHERWISE

DESIGNATED 8730 TALLON LANE NE, SUITE 200,  LACEY, WASHINGTON 98516
P: 360-352-1465    F: 360-352-1509

SCJALLIANCE.COM

MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY

MATLOCK ROAD

PARK AND RIDE DEVELOPMENT

M. KNECHT

P. HOLM

JAN 2020

0738.05

11

T. 20 N., R. 03 W., S 20, W.M.

GCB 3332 EXHIBIT D Page 5 of 11
August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 68



SITE PLAN DETAILS

N.MAYFIELD

0738.5-SP-3-M

SP-3

6

DO NOT

ENTER

SIGNING DETAIL

:

STRIPING AND SYMBOL (PAINT)

VAN

ACESSIBLE

STATE DISABLED PARKING

RESERVED

PARKING

PERMIT REQUIRED

TRANSIT

ONLY

DRAWING FILE No.:

ISSUE DATE:DESIGNED BY:BYDATEREVISIONS

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

PROJECT NAME:

OF

DRAWING No.:

SHEET No.:

JOB No.:

ALL DIMENSIONS

SHOWN IN FEET

UNLESS OTHERWISE

DESIGNATED 8730 TALLON LANE NE, SUITE 200,  LACEY, WASHINGTON 98516
P: 360-352-1465    F: 360-352-1509

SCJALLIANCE.COM

MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY

MATLOCK ROAD

PARK AND RIDE DEVELOPMENT

M. KNECHT

P. HOLM

JAN 2020

0738.05

11

T. 20 N., R. 03 W., S 20, W.M.

STATE DISABLED PARKING

RESERVED

PARKING

PERMIT REQUIRED

PRECAST CEMENT CONCRETE (RAISED) WHEELSTOP

HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT PAVING

ASPHALT PAVING

DO NOT

ENTER

GCB 3332 EXHIBIT D Page 6 of 11
August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 69



LEGENDLEGEND

NOTE:

POINT TABLE

GRADING AND STORMWATER PLAN

M. KNECHT

0738.5-SD-1-M

SD-1

7
DRAWING FILE No.:

ISSUE DATE:DESIGNED BY:BYDATEREVISIONS

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

PROJECT NAME:

OF

DRAWING No.:

SHEET No.:

JOB No.:
ALL DIMENSIONS
SHOWN IN FEET

UNLESS OTHERWISE
DESIGNATED 8730 TALLON LANE NE, SUITE 200,  LACEY, WASHINGTON 98516

P: 360-352-1465    F: 360-352-1509
SCJALLIANCE.COM

MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY
MATLOCK ROAD

PARK AND RIDE DEVELOPMENT

M. KNECHT

P. HOLM

JAN 2020

0738.05

11

T. 20 N., R. 03 W., S 20, W.M.

SCALE IN FEET
0 20 40

A-
LIN

E
(W

 H
UL

BE
RT

 R
D)

A
A

B

B

C C

D

D

F

F

E E

NOTES AND TABLE

GCB 3332 EXHIBIT D Page 7 of 11
August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 70



B-B PONDA-A POND

C-C-BIORETENTION D-D-BIORETENTION

E-E-BIORETENTION F-F-BIORETENTION

DRAWING FILE No.:

ISSUE DATE:DESIGNED BY:BYDATEREVISIONS

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

PROJECT NAME:

OF

DRAWING No.:

SHEET No.:

JOB No.:

ALL DIMENSIONS

SHOWN IN FEET

UNLESS OTHERWISE

DESIGNATED 8730 TALLON LANE NE, SUITE 200,  LACEY, WASHINGTON 98516
P: 360-352-1465    F: 360-352-1509

SCJALLIANCE.COM

MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY

MATLOCK ROAD

PARK AND RIDE DEVELOPMENT

M. KNECHT

P. HOLM

JAN 2020

0738.05

11

T. 20 N., R. 03 W., S 20, W.M.

DRAINAGE DETAILS

M. KNECHT

0738.5-SD-2-M

SD-2

8

SCALE IN FEET

0 20 40

H

SCALE IN FEET

0 4 8

V

GCB 3332 EXHIBIT D Page 8 of 11
August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 71



DRAINAGE DETAILS

M. KNECHT

0738.5-SD-3-M

SD-3

9

BEEHIVE GRATE FOR USE WITH SM60 30"X34" REV FRAME

CURB CUT WITH QUARRY SPALLS DETAIL

DRAWING FILE No.:

ISSUE DATE:DESIGNED BY:BYDATEREVISIONS

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

PROJECT NAME:

OF

DRAWING No.:

SHEET No.:

JOB No.:

ALL DIMENSIONS

SHOWN IN FEET

UNLESS OTHERWISE

DESIGNATED 8730 TALLON LANE NE, SUITE 200,  LACEY, WASHINGTON 98516
P: 360-352-1465    F: 360-352-1509

SCJALLIANCE.COM

MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY

MATLOCK ROAD

PARK AND RIDE DEVELOPMENT

M. KNECHT

P. HOLM

JAN 2020

0738.05

11

T. 20 N., R. 03 W., S 20, W.M.

GCB 3332 EXHIBIT D Page 9 of 11
August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 72



WIRING SCHEDULE

CONSTRUCTION NOTES

LIGHTING SCHEDULE

LIGHTING PLAN

M. KNECHT

0738.5-IL-1-M

IL-1

10

SCALE IN FEET
0 20 40

DRAWING FILE No.:

ISSUE DATE:DESIGNED BY:BYDATEREVISIONS

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

PROJECT NAME:

OF

DRAWING No.:

SHEET No.:

JOB No.:
ALL DIMENSIONS
SHOWN IN FEET

UNLESS OTHERWISE
DESIGNATED 8730 TALLON LANE NE, SUITE 200,  LACEY, WASHINGTON 98516

P: 360-352-1465    F: 360-352-1509
SCJALLIANCE.COM

MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY
MATLOCK ROAD

PARK AND RIDE DEVELOPMENT

M. KNECHT

P. HOLM

JAN 2020

0738.05

11

T. 20 N., R. 03 W., S 20, W.M.
LEGEND

SCALE IN FEET
0 10 20

A-
LIN

E
(W

 H
UL

BE
RT

 R
D)

GCB 3332 EXHIBIT D Page 10 of 11
August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 73

maddie.knecht
Cloud



LIGHTING AND SECURITY DETAILS

M. KNECHT

0738.5-IL-2-M

IL-2

11

DRAWING FILE No.:

ISSUE DATE:DESIGNED BY:BYDATEREVISIONS

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

PROJECT NAME:

OF

DRAWING No.:

SHEET No.:

JOB No.:

ALL DIMENSIONS

SHOWN IN FEET

UNLESS OTHERWISE

DESIGNATED 8730 TALLON LANE NE, SUITE 200,  LACEY, WASHINGTON 98516
P: 360-352-1465    F: 360-352-1509

SCJALLIANCE.COM

MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY

MATLOCK ROAD

PARK AND RIDE DEVELOPMENT

M. KNECHT

P. HOLM

JAN 2020

0738.05

11

T. 20 N., R. 03 W., S 20, W.M.

GCB 3332 EXHIBIT D Page 11 of 11
August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 74



Resolution No. 2020-16 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-16 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
APPROVING THE WSDOT LOCAL AGENCY PARTICIPATING AGREEMENT 

NO. GCB3332 AND AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO SIGN 
THE AGREEMENT. 

 
WHEREAS, the Mason Transit Authority Board has received notification from 

Washington State Department of Transportation that funding for the Shelton-Matlock Road 
Park and Ride in connection with the US 101 Coffee Creek Fish Barrier Removal project 
(the “Project”) shall be accomplished through a Local Agency Participating Agreement Work 
by WSDOT – Actual Cost (Agreement GCB3332) (the “Agreement”); and 

 WHEREAS the Agreement sets forth the requirements and responsibilities of WSDOT 
and MTA in connection with the Project; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
BOARD that it approves the Agreement in which MTA is responsible for $557,449.13; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the MTA Board authorizes the General Manager to 

sign that Agreement. 
 

Adopted this 18th day of August, 2020. 
 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Wes Martin, Chair     Sharon Trask, Vice-Chair 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
John Campbell, Authority Member   Kevin Dorcy, Authority Member 
 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Matt Jewett, Authority Member    Randy Neatherlin, Authority Member  
 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
[Vacant], Authority Member   Kevin Shutty, Authority Member 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 75



Resolution No. 2020-16 Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
______________________________  
Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 76



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 2 – Actionable 
Subject:    Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) 
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    August 18, 2020 
 
 
Background: 
 
Washington State’s Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) is a four-
year, fiscally constrained prioritized multimodal transportation program of state, local, 
tribal and public transportation (transit) projects. The STIP is a calendar year document 
and is developed on an annual basis. Projects are identified through state, metropolitan, 
regional, tribal and local planning processes. Projects programmed in the STIP are the 
highest priority for the available funding to preserve and improvement the state’s 
transportation network and achieving national goals established in the Moving Ahead 
for Progress in the 21st Century Act (MAP-21) and continued in the Fixing America’s 
Surface Transportation Act (FAST). 
 
Only those projects programmed in the STIP can be authorized by the Federal Highway 
Administration (FHWA) and the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) to utilize federal 
funds. Once projects are approved in the STIP, agencies may request federal fund 
authorization of the project.  
 
MTA has prepared and filed its STIP with Regional Transportation Improvement 
Program through the Peninsula Regional Transportation Planning Organization (PRTPO) 
for submission to the Washington State Department of Transportation (WSDOT). Some 
of the highlights of the STIP are as follows: 
 

1. Replacement of vehicles beyond useful life. 
2. Allyn and Hoodsport parking facility planning – feasibility study to see what land 

is available in Allyn and Hoodsport. 
3. Bus wash facility at Johns Prairie. 
4. Maintenance shop in N Mason at the park & ride facility. 
5. New administration/operations building. 

 
We will be looking for grant opportunities regarding the projects that are contained in 
the STIP. 
 
 
 
Summary: Approval of STIP. 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 77



 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
TBD 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Mason Transit Authority’s 
submission to the PRTPO for inclusion in the 2021-2024 Statewide Transportation 
Improvement Plan.  
 
 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 78



Agency: Mason Transit Authority

County: Mason

MPO/RTPO: Peninsula RTPO Y Inside N Outside

Functional
C

lass

Priority N
um

ber

A. PIN/Project No.
C. Project Title
D. Road Name or Number
E. Begin & End Termini
F. Project Description

B. STIP ID

G. Structure ID

H
earing

A
dopted

A
m

endm
ent

R
esolution N

o.

Im
provem

ent Type

U
tility C

odes

Total Length

Environm
ental Type

R
W

 R
equired

09 WA-10161 23 No

3 heavy 35' coach vehicles (SGR Maintenance)

to 

Replacement of three (3) 35' coaches (SGR Scheduled Replacements)

Funding

Status Phase Phase Start Year (YYYY) Federal Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

P ALL 2021 5339(b) 1,135,509 0 378,504 1,514,013

Totals 1,135,509 0 378,504 1,514,013

Expenditure Schedule

Phase 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th & 6th

ALL 1,514,013 0 0 0 0

Totals 1,514,013 0 0 0 0

Federal Funds State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

Grand Totals for Mason Transit Authority 1,135,509 0 378,504 1,514,013

Report Date: August 11, 2020 Page 8

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program
From 2021 to 2026

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 79



Agency: Mason Transit Authority

County: Mason

MPO/RTPO: Peninsula RTPO N Inside Y Outside

Functional
C

lass

Priority N
um

ber

A. PIN/Project No.
C. Project Title
D. Road Name or Number
E. Begin & End Termini
F. Project Description

B. STIP ID

G. Structure ID

H
earing

A
dopted

A
m

endm
ent

R
esolution N

o.

Im
provem

ent Type

U
tility C

odes

Total Length

Environm
ental Type

R
W

 R
equired

09 WA-12164 23 No

6 Cutaways - Rolling Stock Replacement

to 

Replace six (6) cutaway vehicles to meet State of Good Repair (SGR)for the agency.

Funding

Status Phase Phase Start Year (YYYY) Federal Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

P ALL 2021 5339(b) 540,804 0 180,264 721,068

Totals 540,804 0 180,264 721,068

Expenditure Schedule

Phase 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th & 6th

ALL 721,068 0 0 0 0

Totals 721,068 0 0 0 0

Report Date: August 11, 2020 Page 43

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program
From 2021 to 2026

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 80



Agency: Mason Transit Authority

County: Mason

MPO/RTPO: Peninsula RTPO N Inside Y Outside

Functional
C

lass

Priority N
um

ber

A. PIN/Project No.
C. Project Title
D. Road Name or Number
E. Begin & End Termini
F. Project Description

B. STIP ID

G. Structure ID

H
earing

A
dopted

A
m

endm
ent

R
esolution N

o.

Im
provem

ent Type

U
tility C

odes

Total Length

Environm
ental Type

R
W

 R
equired

00 WA-12943 23 CE No

Five Cutaways - 2025 Vehicle Replacement

to 

Replace five (5) cutaways to maintain State of Good Repair to meet agency target of 
80%.

Funding

Status Phase Phase Start Year (YYYY) Federal Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

P ALL 2025 5339(b) 432,000 0 108,000 540,000

Totals 432,000 0 108,000 540,000

Expenditure Schedule

Phase 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th & 6th

ALL 0 0 0 0 540,000

Totals 0 0 0 0 540,000

Report Date: August 11, 2020 Page 44

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program
From 2021 to 2026

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 81



Agency: Mason Transit Authority

County: Mason

MPO/RTPO: Peninsula RTPO N Inside Y Outside

Functional
C

lass

Priority N
um

ber

A. PIN/Project No.
C. Project Title
D. Road Name or Number
E. Begin & End Termini
F. Project Description

B. STIP ID

G. Structure ID

H
earing

A
dopted

A
m

endm
ent

R
esolution N

o.

Im
provem

ent Type

U
tility C

odes

Total Length

Environm
ental Type

R
W

 R
equired

00 WA-12941 23 No

Four 35ft Coaches - 2025 Vehicle Replacement

to 

Replace four (4) 35' coaches to maintain State of Good Repair to meet agency target 
of 80%.

Funding

Status Phase Phase Start Year (YYYY) Federal Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

P ALL 2025 5339(b) 408,000 0 102,000 510,000

Totals 408,000 0 102,000 510,000

Expenditure Schedule

Phase 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th & 6th

ALL 0 0 0 0 510,000

Totals 0 0 0 0 510,000

Report Date: August 11, 2020 Page 45

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program
From 2021 to 2026

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 82



Agency: Mason Transit Authority

County: Mason

MPO/RTPO: Peninsula RTPO N Inside Y Outside

Functional
C

lass

Priority N
um

ber

A. PIN/Project No.
C. Project Title
D. Road Name or Number
E. Begin & End Termini
F. Project Description

B. STIP ID

G. Structure ID

H
earing

A
dopted

A
m

endm
ent

R
esolution N

o.

Im
provem

ent Type

U
tility C

odes

Total Length

Environm
ental Type

R
W

 R
equired

09 WA-12165 23 No

Four Vans - Vehicle Replacement

to 

Replace four (4) vans in the vanpool program to maintain State of Good Repair.

Funding

Status Phase Phase Start Year (YYYY) Federal Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

P ALL 2022 0 WSDOT 73,500 24,500 98,000

Totals 0 73,500 24,500 98,000

Expenditure Schedule

Phase 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th & 6th

ALL 0 98,000 0 0 0

Totals 0 98,000 0 0 0

Report Date: August 11, 2020 Page 46

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program
From 2021 to 2026

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 83



Agency: Mason Transit Authority

County: Mason

MPO/RTPO: Peninsula RTPO N Inside Y Outside

Functional
C

lass

Priority N
um

ber

A. PIN/Project No.
C. Project Title
D. Road Name or Number
E. Begin & End Termini
F. Project Description

B. STIP ID

G. Structure ID

H
earing

A
dopted

A
m

endm
ent

R
esolution N

o.

Im
provem

ent Type

U
tility C

odes

Total Length

Environm
ental Type

R
W

 R
equired

09 WA-12170 23 CE No

Satellite Maintenance Shop

to 

Construct a satellite maintenance shop at the North Mason County Park and Ride 
and Operations Facility to accommodate service on vehicles used in the north end to 
eliminate bringing vehicles to Johns Prairie base for service and repairs.

Funding

Status Phase Phase Start Year (YYYY) Federal Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

P ALL 2024 5339 800,000 0 200,000 1,000,000

Totals 800,000 0 200,000 1,000,000

Expenditure Schedule

Phase 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th & 6th

ALL 0 0 0 1,000,000 0

Totals 0 0 0 1,000,000 0

Report Date: August 11, 2020 Page 47

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program
From 2021 to 2026

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 84



Agency: Mason Transit Authority

County: Mason

MPO/RTPO: Peninsula RTPO N Inside Y Outside

Functional
C

lass

Priority N
um

ber

A. PIN/Project No.
C. Project Title
D. Road Name or Number
E. Begin & End Termini
F. Project Description

B. STIP ID

G. Structure ID

H
earing

A
dopted

A
m

endm
ent

R
esolution N

o.

Im
provem

ent Type

U
tility C

odes

Total Length

Environm
ental Type

R
W

 R
equired

09 WA-12167 23 CE No

Two 35' Coaches - 2024 Vehicle Replacement

to 

Replace two (2) 35' Coaches to maintain State of Good Repair to meet agency 
requirements.

Funding

Status Phase Phase Start Year (YYYY) Federal Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

P ALL 2024 5339 776,000 0 194,000 970,000

Totals 776,000 0 194,000 970,000

Expenditure Schedule

Phase 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th & 6th

ALL 0 0 0 970,000 0

Totals 0 0 0 970,000 0

Report Date: August 11, 2020 Page 48

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program
From 2021 to 2026

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 85



Agency: Mason Transit Authority

County: Mason

MPO/RTPO: Peninsula RTPO N Inside Y Outside

Functional
C

lass

Priority N
um

ber

A. PIN/Project No.
C. Project Title
D. Road Name or Number
E. Begin & End Termini
F. Project Description

B. STIP ID

G. Structure ID

H
earing

A
dopted

A
m

endm
ent

R
esolution N

o.

Im
provem

ent Type

U
tility C

odes

Total Length

Environm
ental Type

R
W

 R
equired

09 7 WA-02055 23 CE No

Admin/Operations Facility

N/A to N/A

Construct a new facility for MTA administration and operations to improve 
functionality and provide better ADA accessibility. It was determined that it would be 
more feasible to construct a new facility as the current facility would take major 
renovation to meet the requirements for ADA and better functionality. By constructing 
a new building, it would improve the parking area and mobility of vehicles as well as 
provide space for a bus wash facility.

Funding

Status Phase Phase Start Year (YYYY) Federal Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

P ALL 2023 5339 2,000,000 0 500,000 2,500,000

Totals 2,000,000 0 500,000 2,500,000

Expenditure Schedule

Phase 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th & 6th

ALL 0 0 2,500,000 0 0

Totals 0 0 2,500,000 0 0

Report Date: August 11, 2020 Page 49

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program
From 2021 to 2026

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 86



Agency: Mason Transit Authority

County: Mason

MPO/RTPO: Peninsula RTPO N Inside Y Outside

Functional
C

lass

Priority N
um

ber

A. PIN/Project No.
C. Project Title
D. Road Name or Number
E. Begin & End Termini
F. Project Description

B. STIP ID

G. Structure ID

H
earing

A
dopted

A
m

endm
ent

R
esolution N

o.

Im
provem

ent Type

U
tility C

odes

Total Length

Environm
ental Type

R
W

 R
equired

09 19 WA-02080 23 CE No

Two 35' Coaches - 2021 Vehicle Replacement

N/A to N/A

Replace two (2) 35' coaches that have exceeded their useful service lives.

Funding

Status Phase Phase Start Year (YYYY) Federal Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

P ALL 2021 5311 782,400 0 195,600 978,000

Totals 782,400 0 195,600 978,000

Expenditure Schedule

Phase 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th & 6th

ALL 978,000 0 0 0 0

Totals 978,000 0 0 0 0

Report Date: August 11, 2020 Page 50

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program
From 2021 to 2026

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 87



Agency: Mason Transit Authority

County: Mason

MPO/RTPO: Peninsula RTPO N Inside Y Outside

Functional
C

lass

Priority N
um

ber

A. PIN/Project No.
C. Project Title
D. Road Name or Number
E. Begin & End Termini
F. Project Description

B. STIP ID

G. Structure ID

H
earing

A
dopted

A
m

endm
ent

R
esolution N

o.

Im
provem

ent Type

U
tility C

odes

Total Length

Environm
ental Type

R
W

 R
equired

09 20 WA-02081 23 CE No

Construct Wet Maintenance Facility at Main Base

N/A to N/A

Construct an environmentally safe on-site bus washing facility.

Funding

Status Phase Phase Start Year (YYYY) Federal Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

P ALL 2022 5339(b) 400,000 0 100,000 500,000

Totals 400,000 0 100,000 500,000

Expenditure Schedule

Phase 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th & 6th

ALL 0 500,000 0 0 0

Totals 0 500,000 0 0 0

Report Date: August 11, 2020 Page 51

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program
From 2021 to 2026

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 88



Agency: Mason Transit Authority

County: Mason

MPO/RTPO: Peninsula RTPO N Inside Y Outside

Functional
C

lass

Priority N
um

ber

A. PIN/Project No.
C. Project Title
D. Road Name or Number
E. Begin & End Termini
F. Project Description

B. STIP ID

G. Structure ID

H
earing

A
dopted

A
m

endm
ent

R
esolution N

o.

Im
provem

ent Type

U
tility C

odes

Total Length

Environm
ental Type

R
W

 R
equired

09 22 WA-02084 23 CE No

Allyn Transit Center Planning

N/A to N/A

Working with County and WSDOT, initiate a planning process for a transit center that 
supports the commercial, retail and residential masterplan for Allyn. This project is 
also Improvement type 18- Planning

Funding

Status Phase Phase Start Year (YYYY) Federal Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

P PE 2021 0 WSDOT 40,000 10,000 50,000

Totals 0 40,000 10,000 50,000

Expenditure Schedule

Phase 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th & 6th

ALL 20,000 30,000 0 0 0

Totals 20,000 30,000 0 0 0

Report Date: August 11, 2020 Page 52

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program
From 2021 to 2026

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 89



Agency: Mason Transit Authority

County: Mason

MPO/RTPO: Peninsula RTPO N Inside Y Outside

Functional
C

lass

Priority N
um

ber

A. PIN/Project No.
C. Project Title
D. Road Name or Number
E. Begin & End Termini
F. Project Description

B. STIP ID

G. Structure ID

H
earing

A
dopted

A
m

endm
ent

R
esolution N

o.

Im
provem

ent Type

U
tility C

odes

Total Length

Environm
ental Type

R
W

 R
equired

09 23 WA-02085 23 CE No

Hoodsport Transit Center US Hwy 101 and SR119

N/A to N/A

Feasibility study to design, locate and construct a small transit center near the 
intersection of SR119 and US 101 to complement a locally developed park and ride 
lot.

Funding

Status Phase Phase Start Year (YYYY) Federal Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

P ALL 2023 5311 40,000 0 10,000 50,000

Totals 40,000 0 10,000 50,000

Expenditure Schedule

Phase 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th & 6th

ALL 0 0 50,000 0 0

Totals 0 0 50,000 0 0

Federal Funds State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

Grand Totals for Mason Transit Authority 6,179,204 113,500 1,624,364 7,917,068

Report Date: August 11, 2020 Page 53

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program
From 2021 to 2026

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 90



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 3 – Actionable 
Subject:    Update of Determining Responsibility for Policies (POL-100) 
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    August 18, 2020 
 
 
Background: 
 
MTA’s Managers are reviewing MTA’s policies to determine which need to be updated as 
some have not been updated in three years or more. It is anticipated that for the next 
few months there will be some updates to policies for consideration by the Board. 
 
While reviewing this policy, it was discussed with the Committee as to what service 
changes would need to be approved by the Board. After some discussion, it arrived at 
the conclusion that rather than small service time and other such adjustments of 
various routes, it would be more practical to bring to the Board major service additions 
or reductions that could potentially impact MTA’s finances of a certain threshold to 
support the service changes. The Committee has agreed that the threshold will be 10% 
impact to the financial position. 
 
This has been reviewed by the Policy Committee and Legal Counsel.   
 
 
Summary: Amend existing Determining Responsibility for Policies Policy 
(POL-100). 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
None. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2020-17 and the 
attached Determining Responsibility for Policies Policy (POL-100). 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 91



 
 

Title: Determining Responsibility for Policies 
Number: 100 
Effective: May 1, 2014August 18, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2014-03N/A 
Prepared by: Human ResourcesAdministrative Services 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2014-032020-17 

 

See Also:  POL-101, POL-102, POL-103 
Page 1 of 2 

POL-100 DETERMINING RESPONSIBILITY FOR POLICIES 

This policy applies to all Mason Transit Authority (MTA) employees. 

1.0 Policies Describe Management Decisions 

A policy describes a management decision which meets any of these criteria: 

• Establishes, directs, or limits what work may be done. 
• States who is responsible for what work. 
• Establishes business requirements. 
• Lists criteria for decision making. 
• Sets deadlines. 
• Establishes exceptions. 

2.0 Policies Govern Ongoing Business Activities 

Policies address business activities and issues which occur enough and affect 
enough employees so that long-term guidance simplifies, regulates, and 
standardizes work.  Policies give direction that is valid more than 90 percent of 
the time and ensures fair treatment for all employees. 

Policies are not intended to address one-time occurrences or unanticipated 
exceptions, unless required by law, court decisions, or regulations.  We issue 
memos or letters to communicate short-term or single-issue guidance. 

3.0 Mason Transit Authority’s Governing Board is Responsible for Agency Policy 

Mason Transit Authority’s by-laws and Washington State law give policy 
responsibility and authority to the agency’s Governing Board.  As the agency’s 
legal oversight body, the Governing Board establishes those policies which shape 
the agency’s overall strategic direction. 

The Governing Board establishes agency policy by setting long-term agency 
goals; by approving the Six-Year Transit Development Plan and the annual 
budget, by approving service increases or decreases changesthat impact MTA’s 
financial cost by 10% or more and fare increases; by approving the general 
programs, business activities, and services the agency offers; and by evaluating 
and acting on business issues which are of interest to the agency or that may 
create a potential liability. 

4.0 Policies Must Comply with Regulations, Laws, and Court Decisions 

Rules about what business our agency may conduct and how our agency 
manages its business may come from local, state, and federal laws; from court 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 92



 
 

Title: Determining Responsibility for Policies 
Number: 100 
Effective: May 1, 2014August 18, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2014-03N/A 
Prepared by: Human ResourcesAdministrative Services 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2014-032020-17 

 

See Also:  POL-101, POL-102, POL-103 
Page 2 of 2 

decisions; and from regulatory agencies.  All Mason Transit Authority policies 
must comply with applicable laws, court decisions, and regulations. 

5.0 The General Manager is Responsible for Managing the Agency 

The General Manager may develop and implement those policies necessary to 
manage the agency’s general business activities and Board-approved programs 
and services.  The Governing Board may also delegate other policy 
responsibilities to the General Manager. 

6.0 Department Heads May Develop Department-Specific Policies 

Department heads may develop policies designed to manage the specific 
activities of their departments.  The General Manager must concur with all 
department-specific policies before they are implemented. 

7.0 Policies Developed at Subordinate Levels May Not Contradict Policies Developed at 
Higher Levels 

 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 93



Resolution No. 2020-17 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-17 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
ADOPTING A REVISED DETERMINING RESPONSIBILITY FOR POLICIES 
POLICY (POL-100) WHICH SHALL SUPERSEDE AND PLACE IN FULL ANY 
PREVIOUSLY ADOPTED RESPONSIBILITY FOR POLICIES POLICY, AND 

RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 2014-03. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Mason Transit Authority Board approved and adopted Mason Transit 
Authority’s Determining Responsibility for Policies (POL-100) which became effective on 
May 1, 2014; and 

WHEREAS, upon periodic review of MTA’s policies, it was determined that it is 
more practical for staff to bring service changes to MTA’s Board when there are major 
service additions or reductions that could potentially impact MTA’s finances of a certain 
threshold to support the service changes; and 

WHEREAS, it is recommended by the Policy Review Committee and staff that the 
financial threshold for service changes requiring Board approval be 10% impact; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
BOARD that the revised Responsibility for Policies Policy (POL-100), which is attached hereto 
and incorporated herein, be established and adopted; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT this Determining Responsibility for Policies Policy 
(POL-100) shall supersede and replace in full any previously adopted or approved Determining 
Responsibility for Policies Policy (POL-100), including rescinding Resolution No. 2014-03. 

 
Adopted this 18th day of August, 2020. 

 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Wes Martin, Chair     Sharon Trask, Vice-Chair 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
John Campbell, Authority Member   Kevin Dorcy, Authority Member 
 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Matt Jewett, Authority Member    Randy Neatherlin, Authority Member  

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 94



Resolution No. 2020-17 Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
[Vacant], Authority Member   Kevin Shutty, Authority Member 
 
 
______________________________  
Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 95



 
 

Title: Determining Responsibility for Policies 
Number: 100 
Effective: August 18, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2014-03 
Prepared by: Administrative Services 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2020-17 

 

See Also:  POL-101, POL-102, POL-103 
Page 1 of 2 

POL-100 DETERMINING RESPONSIBILITY FOR POLICIES 

This policy applies to all Mason Transit Authority (MTA) employees. 

1.0 Policies Describe Management Decisions 

A policy describes a management decision which meets any of these criteria: 

• Establishes, directs, or limits what work may be done. 
• States who is responsible for what work. 
• Establishes business requirements. 
• Lists criteria for decision making. 
• Sets deadlines. 
• Establishes exceptions. 

2.0 Policies Govern Ongoing Business Activities 

Policies address business activities and issues which occur enough and affect 
enough employees so that long-term guidance simplifies, regulates, and 
standardizes work.  Policies give direction that is valid more than 90 percent of 
the time and ensures fair treatment for all employees. 

Policies are not intended to address one-time occurrences or unanticipated 
exceptions, unless required by law, court decisions, or regulations.  We issue 
memos or letters to communicate short-term or single-issue guidance. 

3.0 Mason Transit Authority’s Governing Board is Responsible for Agency Policy 

Mason Transit Authority’s by-laws and Washington State law give policy 
responsibility and authority to the agency’s Governing Board.  As the agency’s 
legal oversight body, the Governing Board establishes those policies which shape 
the agency’s overall strategic direction. 

The Governing Board establishes agency policy by setting long-term agency 
goals; by approving the Six-Year Transit Development Plan and the annual 
budget, by approving service increases or decreases that impact MTA’s financial 
cost by 10% or more and fare increases; by approving the general programs, 
business activities, and services the agency offers; and by evaluating and acting 
on business issues which are of interest to the agency or that may create a 
potential liability. 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 96



 
 

Title: Determining Responsibility for Policies 
Number: 100 
Effective: August 18, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2014-03 
Prepared by: Administrative Services 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2020-17 

 

See Also:  POL-101, POL-102, POL-103 
Page 2 of 2 

4.0 Policies Must Comply with Regulations, Laws, and Court Decisions 

Rules about what business our agency may conduct and how our agency 
manages its business may come from local, state, and federal laws; from court 
decisions; and from regulatory agencies.  All Mason Transit Authority policies 
must comply with applicable laws, court decisions, and regulations. 

5.0 The General Manager is Responsible for Managing the Agency 

The General Manager may develop and implement those policies necessary to 
manage the agency’s general business activities and Board-approved programs 
and services.  The Governing Board may also delegate other policy 
responsibilities to the General Manager. 

6.0 Department Heads May Develop Department-Specific Policies 

Department heads may develop policies designed to manage the specific 
activities of their departments.  The General Manager must concur with all 
department-specific policies before they are implemented. 

7.0 Policies Developed at Subordinate Levels May Not Contradict Policies Developed at 
Higher Levels 

 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 97



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 4 – Actionable 
Subject:    Update of Numbering and Indexing Policies, Procedures and 

Task Outlines Policy (POL-101) 
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    August 18, 2020 
 
 
Background: 
 
This policy became effective on May 1, 2014, by motion of the Board and the changes 
relate to titles of those carrying out the managing of the policies, procedures and task 
outline documents. Section 6 was removed relating to the location of these documents 
as the information is unnecessary and MTA’s electronic records management is 
currently under reorganization and this section would soon be out-of-date. 
 
This policy has been reviewed by the Policy Committee and Legal Counsel.   
 
 
Summary: Amend existing Numbering and Indexing Policies, Procedures and 
Task Outlines Policy (POL-101). 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
None. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2020-18 and the 
attached Numbering and Indexing Policies, Procedures and Task Outlines Policy 
(POL-101). 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 98



Title: Numbering and Indexing Policies, 
Procedures, and Task Outlines 
101 
May 1, 2014 August 18, 2020 
N/AMay 1, 2014 
Human ResourcesAdministrative Services 
General ManagerAuthority Board 
Resolution No. 2020-17 

See Also: POL-100, POL-102, POL-103 
Page 1of 45 

Number: 
Effective: 
Cancels: 
Prepared by: 
Approved by: 

 

 

 
POL-101 NUMBERING AND INDEXING POLICIES, PROCEDURES, AND TASK OUTLINES 
 

This policy applies to all Mason Transit Authority (MTA) employees who write, 
index, distribute, or manage policy, procedure, and task outline documents. 

1.0  Policy Numbering Identifies Team Responsibility for Policy Compliance 

Each MTA team is already identified by a specific, unique number. 

Prefix the number with the letters POL- to show that it is a policy, followed by 
the policy number. 

Appendix A to this policy lists all the team identifiers and gives a 
general description of the types of policies each team is responsible 
for. 

2.0  Policy Numbers Can Be Used Only Once 

Each new policy is issued a number after it is approved.  Numbers for canceled, 
rescinded, or superseded policies are not reused.  Revised policies keep the 
same number. 

3.0  Procedures and Task Outlines Use the Same Number as Their Parent Policy 

Procedures use the abbreviation "PRO" instead of "POL" Tasks use the 
abbreviation "TSK." A procedure and a task falling under the policy 101 
would be numbered as follows: 

PR0-101 

TSK-101 

If a policy requires multiple procedures or tasks, add a letter identifier to the 
issue number to indicate the sequence in which the procedures and tasks must 
be completed.  Examples: 

   PRO-101A  TSK-101A 

   PRO-101B  TSK-101B

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 99



Title: Numbering and Indexing Policies, 
Procedures, and Task Outlines 
101 
May 1, 2014 August 18, 2020 
N/AMay 1, 2014 
Human ResourcesAdministrative Services 
General ManagerAuthority Board 
Resolution No. 2020-17 

See Also: POL-100, POL-102, POL-103 
Page 2of 45 

Number: 
Effective: 
Cancels: 
Prepared by: 
Approved by: 

 

 

4.0  Human ResourcesExecutive Assistant to issue Policy Numbers and Index Completed 
Policies, Procedures, and Tasks 

 
Human Resources Manager The Execxutive Assistant will issue policy numbers 
and control indexing of the policies, procedures, and tasks. 

 
5.0  Index Policies for Maximum Searchability 

Policies, procedures, and task outlines will be indexed in two ways: 

• Topic Number 
• Policy Name 

6.0  The Agency's Master  list of all Policies,Procedures,and Task Outlines  will be Available 
on the N:\Shared\HUMAN RESOURCES\Policies,Procedures & Forms\Master List.docx 
by Team 

The master indices for all agency policy, procedures, and task outlines will be available to all 
employees on the N:\Shared\HUMAN RESOURCES\Policies, Procedures & 
Forms\Master list.docx by Team. 

 
  

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 100



Title: Numbering and Indexing Policies, 
Procedures, and Task Outlines 
101 
May 1, 2014 August 18, 2020 
N/AMay 1, 2014 
Human ResourcesAdministrative Services 
General ManagerAuthority Board 
Resolution No. 2020-17 

See Also: POL-100, POL-102, POL-103 
Page 3of 45 

Number: 
Effective: 
Cancels: 
Prepared by: 
Approved by: 

 

 

 
 

Appendix A to Policy 100  
(Sample) 

 
 
100 POLICIES, PROCEDURES & TASKS 
 
Topic 
Number 

 
  Policy Name 

    100   Determining Responsibility for Policies 
  101   Numbering and Indexing Policies, Procedures, and Task Outlines 
  102   Implementing Procedures and Tasks 
  103   Distributing and Implementing Policies, Procedures, and Task Outlines 
  104   Implementing Procedures and Tasks 

 
200 ADMINISTRATION 
 
Topic 
Number 

 
  Policy Name 

  200   Shared Leave Program 
201   Employee Bus Passes 

 
 
 
300 HUMAN RESOURCES 
 

Topic 
Number 

 
  Policy Number 

  301 Whistleblower Policy 
302 Anti-Harassment 

 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 101



Title: Numbering and Indexing Policies, 
Procedures, and Task Outlines 
101 
May 1, 2014 August 18, 2020 
N/AMay 1, 2014 
Human ResourcesAdministrative Services 
General ManagerAuthority Board 
Resolution No. 2020-17 

See Also: POL-100, POL-102, POL-103 
Page 4of 45 

Number: 
Effective: 
Cancels: 
Prepared by: 
Approved by: 

 

 

400 FINANCE 
 

Topic 
Number 

 
  Policy Number 

  400 Procurement 
401 Travel 

 
500 OPERATIONS 

 
Topic 
Number 

 
  Policy Number 

    500   Americans with Disabilities / Wheelchairs 
  501   Strollers 

 
600 SAFETY & WELLNESS 

 
Topic 
Number 

 
  Policy Number 

    600   Evacuation Policy 
  601   Smoking Policy 

 
700 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

 
Topic 
Number 

 
  Policy Number 

    701   Maintaining IT Security 
  702   Computer Usage 

 
800 SERVICES & PROGRAMS 

 
Topic 
Number 

 
  Policy Number 

    800   Leasing Policy 
  801   Submitting Comments 

 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 102



Title: Numbering and Indexing Policies, 
Procedures, and Task Outlines 
101 
May 1, 2014 August 18, 2020 
N/AMay 1, 2014 
Human ResourcesAdministrative Services 
General ManagerAuthority Board 
Resolution No. 2020-17 

See Also: POL-100, POL-102, POL-103 
Page 5of 45 

Number: 
Effective: 
Cancels: 
Prepared by: 
Approved by: 

 

 

900 DEVELOPMENT 
 

Topic 
Number 

 
  Policy Number 

    900   Grant Application 
  901   Grant Requirements 

 
1000 OUTREACH & MARKETING 

 
Topic 
Number 

 
  Policy Number 

    1000   Volunteer Driver Program 
  1002   Transit Advertising Policy 

 
1100 MAINTENANCE & FACILITIES 

 
Topic 
Number 

 
  Policy Number 

    1100   Brakes Testing & Replacement Policy 
  1101   Working Alone Policy 

 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 103



Resolution No. 2020-18 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-18 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
ADOPTING A REVISED NUMBERING AND INDEXING POLICIES, 

PROCEDURES AND TASK OUTLINES POLICY (POL-101) WHICH SHALL 
SUPERSEDE AND REPLACE IN FULL ANY PREVIOUSLY ADOPTED 

NUMBERING AND INDEXING POLICIES, PROCEDURES AND TASK 
OUTLINES POLICY (POL-101). 

 
 WHEREAS, the Mason Transit Authority Board approved, by motion, Mason Transit 
Authority’s Numbering and Indexing Policies, Procedures and Task Outlines Policy 
(POL-101) which became effective on May 1, 2014; and 

WHEREAS, upon periodic review of MTA’s policies it was determined that, based on 
the current structure of MTA’s Executive team that the Executive Assistant is to maintain 
the numbering and indexing of policies, procedures and task outlines of MTA’s policies; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
BOARD that the revised Numbering and Indexing Policies, Procedures and Task Outlines Policy 
(POL-101), which is attached hereto and incorporated herein, be established and adopted; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT this Numbering and Indexing Policies, Procedures 
and Task Outlines Policy (POL-101) shall supersede and replace in full any previously adopted 
or approved Numbering and Indexing Policies, Procedures and Task Outlines Policy (POL-101). 

 
Adopted this 18th day of August, 2020. 

 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Wes Martin, Chair     Sharon Trask, Vice-Chair 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
John Campbell, Authority Member   Kevin Dorcy, Authority Member 
 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Matt Jewett, Authority Member    Randy Neatherlin, Authority Member  
 
 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 104



Resolution No. 2020-18 Page 2 of 2 
 

______________________________  ____________________________ 
[Vacant], Authority Member   Kevin Shutty, Authority Member 
 
 
______________________________  
Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 105



Title: Numbering and Indexing Policies, 
Procedures, and Task Outlines 
101 
August 18, 2020 
May 1, 2014 
Administrative Services 
Authority Board 
Resolution No. 2020-17 

See Also: POL-100, POL-102, POL-103 
Page 1of 5 

Number: 
Effective: 
Cancels: 
Prepared by: 
Approved by: 

 

 

POL-101 NUMBERING AND INDEXING POLICIES, PROCEDURES, AND TASK OUTLINES 
 

This policy applies to all Mason Transit Authority (MTA) employees who write, 
index, distribute, or manage policy, procedure, and task outline documents. 

1.0  Policy Numbering Identifies Team Responsibility for Policy Compliance 

Each MTA team is already identified by a specific, unique number. 

Prefix the number with the letters POL- to show that it is a policy, followed by 
the policy number. 

Appendix A to this policy lists all the team identifiers and gives a 
general description of the types of policies each team is responsible 
for. 

2.0  Policy Numbers Can Be Used Only Once 

Each new policy is issued a number after it is approved.  Numbers for canceled, 
rescinded, or superseded policies are not reused.  Revised policies keep the 
same number. 

3.0  Procedures and Task Outlines Use the Same Number as Their Parent Policy 

Procedures use the abbreviation "PRO" instead of "POL" Tasks use the 
abbreviation "TSK." A procedure and a task falling under the policy 101 
would be numbered as follows: 

PR0-101 

TSK-101 

If a policy requires multiple procedures or tasks, add a letter identifier to the 
issue number to indicate the sequence in which the procedures and tasks must 
be completed.  Examples: 

   PRO-101A  TSK-101A 

   PRO-101B  TSK-101B

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 106



Title: Numbering and Indexing Policies, 
Procedures, and Task Outlines 
101 
August 18, 2020 
May 1, 2014 
Administrative Services 
Authority Board 
Resolution No. 2020-17 

See Also: POL-100, POL-102, POL-103 
Page 2of 5 

Number: 
Effective: 
Cancels: 
Prepared by: 
Approved by: 

 

 

4.0  Executive Assistant to issue Policy Numbers and Index Completed Policies, 
Procedures, and Tasks 

The Executive Assistant will issue policy numbers and control indexing of the 
policies, procedures, and tasks. 

 
5.0  Index Policies for Maximum Searchability 

Policies, procedures, and task outlines will be indexed in two ways: 

• Topic Number 
• Policy Name 

 
  

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 107



Title: Numbering and Indexing Policies, 
Procedures, and Task Outlines 
101 
August 18, 2020 
May 1, 2014 
Administrative Services 
Authority Board 
Resolution No. 2020-17 

See Also: POL-100, POL-102, POL-103 
Page 3of 5 

Number: 
Effective: 
Cancels: 
Prepared by: 
Approved by: 

 

 

 
 

Appendix A to Policy 100  
(Sample) 

 
 
100 POLICIES, PROCEDURES & TASKS 
 

Topic 
Number 

 
  Policy Name 

    100   Determining Responsibility for Policies 
  101   Numbering and Indexing Policies, Procedures, and Task Outlines 
  102   Implementing Procedures and Tasks 
  103   Distributing and Implementing Policies, Procedures, and Task Outlines 
  104   Implementing Procedures and Tasks 

 
200 ADMINISTRATION 
 

Topic 
Number 

 
  Policy Name 

  200   Shared Leave Program 
201   Employee Bus Passes 

 
300 HUMAN RESOURCES 
 

Topic 
Number 

 
  Policy Number 

  301 Whistleblower Policy 
302 Anti-Harassment 

 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 108



Title: Numbering and Indexing Policies, 
Procedures, and Task Outlines 
101 
August 18, 2020 
May 1, 2014 
Administrative Services 
Authority Board 
Resolution No. 2020-17 

See Also: POL-100, POL-102, POL-103 
Page 4of 5 

Number: 
Effective: 
Cancels: 
Prepared by: 
Approved by: 

 

 

400 FINANCE 
 

Topic 
Number 

 
  Policy Number 

  400 Procurement 
401 Travel 

 
500 OPERATIONS 

 
Topic 
Number 

 
  Policy Number 

    500   Americans with Disabilities / Wheelchairs 
  501   Strollers 

 
600 SAFETY & WELLNESS 

 
Topic 
Number 

 
  Policy Number 

    600   Evacuation Policy 
  601   Smoking Policy 

 
700 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

 
Topic 
Number 

 
  Policy Number 

    701   Maintaining IT Security 
  702   Computer Usage 

 
800 SERVICES & PROGRAMS 

 
Topic 
Number 

 
  Policy Number 

    800   Leasing Policy 
  801   Submitting Comments 

 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 109



Title: Numbering and Indexing Policies, 
Procedures, and Task Outlines 
101 
August 18, 2020 
May 1, 2014 
Administrative Services 
Authority Board 
Resolution No. 2020-17 

See Also: POL-100, POL-102, POL-103 
Page 5of 5 

Number: 
Effective: 
Cancels: 
Prepared by: 
Approved by: 

 

 

900 DEVELOPMENT 
 

Topic 
Number 

 
  Policy Number 

    900   Grant Application 
  901   Grant Requirements 

 
1000 OUTREACH & MARKETING 

 
Topic 
Number 

 
  Policy Number 

    1000   Volunteer Driver Program 
  1002   Transit Advertising Policy 

 
1100 MAINTENANCE & FACILITIES 

 
Topic 
Number 

 
  Policy Number 

    1100   Brakes Testing & Replacement Policy 
  1101   Working Alone Policy 

 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 110



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 5 – Actionable 
Subject:    Update of Distributing Procedures and Tasks Outlines Policy 

(POL-102) 
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    August 18, 2020 
 
 
Background: 
 
This policy became effective on May 1, 2014 and the changes relate to the following: 
 

• Changed description of location of documents stored on MTA’s server being more 
general than with specificity, to allow for internal changes. 

• Updated with current process of distribution of policies being through Paylocity 
and requirement of acknowledgment when appropriate. 

• Revised the 45 days for employees to review. 
• Any future changes to policies that are only job title or name changes in nature 

shall not require Board approval. 
• Provision for archiving of superseded, retired and cancelled version of policies, 

procedures and tasks. 
 
This policy has been reviewed by the Policy Committee and Legal Counsel. 
 
 
Summary: Amend existing Distributing Procedures and Tasks Outlines Policy 
(POL-102). 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
None. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2020-19 and the 
attached Distributing Procedures and Tasks Outlines Policy (POL-102). 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 111



See Also: POL-100, POL-101, POL-103 
Page 1of 2 

Title: Distributing Procedures and Tasks 
Outlines 
102 
May 1, 2014August 18, 2020 
N/AMay 1, 2014 
Human ResourcesAdministrative Services 
General Manager Authority Board 
Resolution No. 2020-19 

Number: 
Effective: 
Cancels: 
Prepared by: 
Approved by: 

 

 

 
 
 
POL-102 DISTRIBUTING POLICIES, PROCEDURES AND TASK OUTLINES 

This policy applies to Mason Transit Authority (MTA) employees who 
distribute policies, procedures, and task outline documents. 

1.0  All Policy Documents will be Available to All Employees on the Agency 
N:\Shared\HUMAN RESOURCES\Policies, Procedures & Forms 

  All adopted policy documents will be located on the agency’sMTA’s 
shared main drive located under Policies,   Procedures and Forms, then under the 
department filefolder. 

Employees responsible for indexing policy documents will also post their team's 
policies, procedures, and task outlines on N:\Shared\HUMAN 
RESOURCES\Policies, Procedures & Forms.in the same location. 

2.0  Some Policies Require Proof of Receipt 

Policies will be distributed in Paylocity with an acknowledgment when 
required. Hard copies will also be available and placed in appropriate 
notebooks.hard copy with a signature sheet attached when proof of receipt is 
required. 

Managers responsible for implementing policies will determine whether proof 
of receipt is required and, if it is, the distribution method  which will best meet 
their business needs. 

23.0  Notification to Managers will Notify All AffectedEmployees of Acknowledgment 
Requirements Employees When New Policies are Issued or Existing Policies are Revised 

Employment related agency policies will be presented to newly hired employees for  
acknowledgment by Administrative Services as part of the Onboarding process. 
 
Administrative Services will notify employees of the publication of job relevant 
revisions to existing policies and the creation of new policies through the Event 
process in Paylocity, through slides on internal monitors, and through Supervisor 
communication. 
 
Notification must be in writing and must be made through memo.  Managers 
and supervisors must also give written notification to affected employees 
when new or revised procedures and tasks are issued. 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 112



See Also: POL-100, POL-101, POL-103 
Page 2of 2 

Title: Distributing Procedures and Tasks 
Outlines 
102 
May 1, 2014August 18, 2020 
N/AMay 1, 2014 
Human ResourcesAdministrative Services 
General Manager Authority Board 
Resolution No. 2020-19 

Number: 
Effective: 
Cancels: 
Prepared by: 
Approved by: 

 

 

34.0  If Business Needs Permit, New Policies will be Posted for 30 Days Before the Effective 
Date 

This requirement is waived whenever business needs dictate that a policy must 
become effective sooner than 30 days after approval. 

45.0  Revisions to Policies, Procedures, and Tasks will be Posted for 45 Days 

Revisions to existing policy documents will be presented for 
acknowledgment in a version highlighted in red font and strikethrough 
font, if needed, for a period of 45 days so that employees can clearly 
identify what changes have been made.  After 45 days the employee 
responsible for indexing the document will remove the revision marks and 
prepare the old version of the document for archiving.so that changes are 
apparent.  A clean version of the policy will be available in the Policy 
Document folder within the Paylocity Self-Service Portal as well as the 
notebooks referenced above.   

5.0  Some Policies Require Proof of Receipt 

Policies will be distributed in Paylocity as an Event with a signed 
acknowledgment required when necessary. Hard copies will also be available 
and placed in appropriate notebooks. 

6.0  Revisions to Titles and Names 

Policies are reviewed at  a minimum  of every three years or sooner if necessary. 
Policies with no changes except to job titles and names are not required to  be   
presented to the board for approval. 

67.0  Superseded, Retired, and Canceled Version of Policies, Procedures, and Tasks will be 
Kept in Archives Indefinitely 

The Human Resources ManagerExecutive Assistant is responsible for 
archiving all superseded, retired, or cancelled versions of policies, 
procedures, and tasks. The Human Resources ManagerExecutive Assistant 
will determine the archiving media. 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 113



Resolution No. 2020-19 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-19 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
ADOPTING A REVISED DISTRIBUTING PROCEDURES AND TASKS 

OUTLINES POLICY (POL-102) WHICH SHALL SUPERSEDE AND REPLACE 
IN FULL ANY PREVIOUSLY ADOPTED DISTRIBUTING PROCEDURES 

AND TASKS OUTLINES POLICY (POL-102). 

 
 WHEREAS, the Mason Transit Authority Board approved, by motion, Mason Transit 
Authority’s Numbering and Indexing Policies, Procedures and Task Outlines Policy (POL-102) 
which became effective on May 1, 2014; and 

WHEREAS, upon periodic review of MTA’s policies it was determined that updates were 
necessary to incorporate new processes, as well as provide that any future changes to all 
policies that are only job title or name changes in nature do not require Board approval; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
BOARD that the revised Distributing Procedures and Tasks Outlines Policy (POL-102), which is 
attached hereto and incorporated herein, be established and adopted; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT this Distributing Procedures and Tasks Outlines 
Policy (POL-102) shall supersede and replace in full any previously adopted or approved 
Distributing Procedures and Tasks Outlines Policy (POL-102). 

 
Adopted this 18th day of August, 2020. 

 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Wes Martin, Chair     Sharon Trask, Vice-Chair 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
John Campbell, Authority Member   Kevin Dorcy, Authority Member 
 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Matt Jewett, Authority Member    Randy Neatherlin, Authority Member  
 
 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 114



Resolution No. 2020-19 Page 2 of 2 
 

______________________________  ____________________________ 
[Vacant], Authority Member   Kevin Shutty, Authority Member 
 
 
______________________________  
Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 115



See Also: POL-100, POL-101, POL-103 
Page 1of 2 

Title: Distributing Procedures and Tasks 
Outlines 
102 
August 18, 2020 
May 1, 2014 
Administrative Services 
Authority Board 
Resolution No. 2020-19 

Number: 
Effective: 
Cancels: 
Prepared by: 
Approved by: 

 

 

 
 
 
POL-102 DISTRIBUTING POLICIES, PROCEDURES AND TASK OUTLINES 

This policy applies to Mason Transit Authority (MTA) employees who 
distribute policies, procedures, and task outline documents. 

1.0  All Policy Documents will be Available to All Employees  

All adopted policy documents will be located on MTA’s shared main drive located 
under Policies, Procedures and Forms, then under the department folder. 

2.0  Notification to Employees of Acknowledgment Requirements 

Employment related agency policies will be presented to newly hired employees for  
acknowledgment by Administrative Services as part of the Onboarding process. 
 
Administrative Services will notify employees of the publication of job relevant 
revisions to existing policies and the creation of new policies through the Event 
process in Paylocity, through slides on internal monitors, and through Supervisor 
communication. 
 

3.0  If Business Needs Permit, New Policies will be Posted for 30 Days Before the Effective 
Date 

This requirement is waived whenever business needs dictate that a policy must 
become effective sooner than 30 days after approval. 

4.0  Revisions to Policies, Procedures, and Tasks  

Revisions to existing policy documents will be presented for 
acknowledgment in a version highlighted in red strikethrough font, so 
that changes are apparent.  A clean version of the policy will be available in the 
Policy Document folder within the Paylocity Self-Service Portal as well as the 
notebooks referenced above.   

5.0  Some Policies Require Proof of Receipt 

Policies will be distributed in Paylocity as an Event with a signed 
acknowledgment required when necessary. Hard copies will also be available 
and placed in appropriate notebooks. 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 116



See Also: POL-100, POL-101, POL-103 
Page 2of 2 

Title: Distributing Procedures and Tasks 
Outlines 
102 
August 18, 2020 
May 1, 2014 
Administrative Services 
Authority Board 
Resolution No. 2020-19 

Number: 
Effective: 
Cancels: 
Prepared by: 
Approved by: 

 

 

6.0  Revisions to Titles and Names 

Policies are reviewed at a minimum of every three years or sooner if necessary. 
Policies with no changes except to job titles and names are not required to be   
presented to the board for approval. 

7.0  Superseded, Retired, and Canceled Version of Policies, Procedures, and Tasks will be 
Kept in Archives Indefinitely 

The Executive Assistant is responsible for archiving all superseded, retired, 
or cancelled versions of policies, procedures, and tasks. The Executive 
Assistant will determine the archiving media. 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 117



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 6 – Actionable 
Subject:    Update of Credit Card Use Policy 

(POL-401) 
Prepared by:  LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    August 18, 2020 
 
 
Background: 
 
This policy was last updated in 2015. Changes have been made in Section 5 to provide 
for receiving advance approval of the Administrative Services Manager when utilizing an 
existing open charge account for convenience of purchases. Minor edits include 
updating titles of those responsible for certain activities related to this policy. 
 
This policy has been reviewed by the Policy Committee and Legal Counsel. 
 
 
Summary: Amend existing Credit Card Policy (POL-401). 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
None. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2020-20 and the 
attached Credit Card Use Policy (POL-401). 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 118



 
 

Title: Credit Card Policy 
Number: 401 
Effective: August 18, 202013 
Revised:              July 21, 2015 
Cancels: N/A 
Prepared by: Danette Brannin, Finance ManagerLeeAnn 
McNulty, Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2015-112020-20 

 

See Also:  PRO 401; POL-402; PRO-402  
Page 1 of 4 

POL-401 CREDIT CARD POLICY 

The purpose of this policy is to establish guidelines and to authorize Mason 
Transit Authority’s policy on the use of agency credit cards to transact official 
agency purchases, acquisitions and authorized travel expenses.  

1.0 Authority 
Mason Transit Authority (MTA) is authorized to use credit cards for official MTA 
purchases and acquisitions as set forth in RCW 43.09.2855 and pursuant of 
policies and procedures adopted by the Mason Transit Authority Board or the 
Mason Transit Authority Leadership Team when so designated by Board 
Authority. 

 

2.0 Distribution 
Credit cards may be distributed to those employees who have job 
responsibilities which would benefit or otherwise be facilitated by the use of a 
credit card. MTA credit cards are issued at the discretion of the General Manager 
and Finance Administrative Services Manager.  

3.0 Authorization and Control 
The Finance Administrative Services Manager shall develop and implement 
procedures and accounting controls as set forth to ensure the proper usage of 
credit cards. The Finance Administrative Services Manager is responsible for 
administration of the cards to include, but not limited to, selection of the card 
provider, payment of credit card bills, managing the issuance of cards and 
ensuring proper use. 

The use of a credit card does not relieve the cardholder from complying with 
other MTA policies and procedures. The card is not intended to replace effective 
procurement planning which can result in more efficient use of MTA’s resources.  

4.0 Credit Limit 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 119



 
 

Title: Credit Card Policy 
Number: 401 
Effective: August 18, 202013 
Revised:              July 21, 2015 
Cancels: N/A 
Prepared by: Danette Brannin, Finance ManagerLeeAnn 
McNulty, Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2015-112020-20 

 

See Also:  PRO 401; POL-402; PRO-402  
Page 2 of 4 

The credit limits for each assigned MTA credit card shall be $2,500, except for 
the Maintenance Manager, Operations Manager, and IT TechnicianSystems 
Administrator which shall have a credit card limit of $5,000. 

 
 
5.0 Authorized Card Use 

Cardholders are authorized to use the card to purchase merchandise, make 
travel arrangements, conference and training registrations, services and other 
ordinary, necessary, reasonable, and usual expenses required as a function of 
their duties at MTA.  

Credit cards may be used by the assigned individuals for official travel-related 
expenses (such as hotel, parking, ferry, taxi, meals, gas, airline tickets, 
emergency MTA vehicle repairs) as authorized in advance by the General 
Manager or Team Manager and in compliance with all MTA travel policies. 

Purchases made with a credit card may be made in-store, by telephone, fax, 
Internet or mail. All purchase procurement policies and procedures must be 
followed. 

 

Receipts must be submitted to Finance the Administrative Services Team for all 
purchases. 

Credit cards may be used by the assigned individuals for official travel-related 
expenses (such as hotel, parking, ferry, taxi, meals, gas, airline tickets, 
emergency MTA vehicle repairs) as authorized in advance by the General 
Manager or Team Manager and in compliance with all MTA travel policies. 

If a credit card is used for the purpose of covering expenses relating to 
authorized travel, receipts must be submitted with a Purchase Log and fully 
itemized travel expense reimbursement, if applicable, within ten (10) days of 
returning from such travel. Any charges on the credit card not properly identified 
on the Purchase Log or found to be not allowed after an audit (as required by 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 120



 
 

Title: Credit Card Policy 
Number: 401 
Effective: August 18, 202013 
Revised:              July 21, 2015 
Cancels: N/A 
Prepared by: Danette Brannin, Finance ManagerLeeAnn 
McNulty, Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2015-112020-20 

 

See Also:  PRO 401; POL-402; PRO-402  
Page 3 of 4 

RCW 42.240.80) shall be paid back to MTA by the individual user by check or 
payroll deduction. (See Unauthorized and Inappropriate Card Use.) 

Purchases where an open charge account exists may be utilized for convenience 
at the time of purchase with the approval of the Administrative Services 
Manager. 

A credit card may only be used by the cardholder unless approved by the Finance 
Administrative Services Manager or Team Manager.   

 

6.0 Card Restrictions 

The following uses will be considered an unauthorized purchase or use: 

• Cash advances of any kind. 
• Personal purchases of any kind, even if the cardholder intends to reimburse 

MTA. 
• Items for non-MTA purposes. 
• Food and beverages for an individual employee, unless authorization is pre-

approved for food and non-alcoholic beverages for business-related 
meetings and travel in compliance with MTA’s policies for Meetings and 
Meals and Travel. 

• Alcoholic beverages. 
• Relocation, entertainment and recreation expenses. 

7.0 Unauthorized and/or Inappropriate Card Use 

The act of obtaining a MTA credit card does not indicate pre-approval of 
purchases or expenditures/expenses. Any charges against MTA’s credit card not 
properly identified on the Purchase Log or not properly allowed following an 
audit of travel expenses shall be paid back by the employee. If, for any reason, 
disallowed charges are not repaid before the charge card billing is due and 
payable, the cardholder shall not use any MTA credit card until disallowed 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 121



 
 

Title: Credit Card Policy 
Number: 401 
Effective: August 18, 202013 
Revised:              July 21, 2015 
Cancels: N/A 
Prepared by: Danette Brannin, Finance ManagerLeeAnn 
McNulty, Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2015-112020-20 

 

See Also:  PRO 401; POL-402; PRO-402  
Page 4 of 4 

charges are reimbursed. The cardholder may also be subject to disciplinary 
action as described below. 

8.0 Disciplinary Action 
Cardholders who make an unauthorized purchase with the card or use the card 
in an inappropriate manner will be subject to revocation of the credit card and 
subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment 
with MTA, criminal prosecution, and restitution to MTA for unauthorized 
purchases. 

9.0 Return of Credit Card 
Employees shall return all MTA credit cards at the request of the General 
Manager and/or Finance Administrative Services Manager, or upon separation of 
employment.  

10.0 Responsibility aAnd Accountability 
All cardholders must sign the Credit Card User Agreement form and adhere to all 
responsibilities and accountability set forth in MTA purchasing procurement 
policies and procedures. 

Cardholders are responsible and accountable for the expenses charged on the 
card in their name. Failure to provide proper receipts and documentation of 
charges, non-authorized usage or not adhering to policies and procedures may 
result in the user being responsible for the charge. 

Safeguard the credit card and account number at all times when in possession; 
report lost or stolen credit cards immediately to the Finance Administrative 
Services Team and credit card agency. 

 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 122



Resolution No. 2020-2 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-20 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
ADOPTING A REVISED CREDIT CARD USE POLICY (POL-401) WHICH 

SHALL SUPERSEDE AND REPLACE IN FULL ANY PREVIOUSLY ADOPTED 
CREDIT CARD USE POLICY (POL-401), INCLUDING RESCINDING 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-11. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Mason Transit Authority Board previously approved by Resolution 
No. 2015-11 Mason Transit Authority’s Credit Card Use Policy (POL-401) which became effective 
on July 21, 2015; and 

WHEREAS, upon periodic review of MTA’s policies it was determined that updates were 
necessary to incorporate new processes, as well as provide that any future changes to all 
policies that are only job title or name changes in nature, do not require Board approval; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
BOARD that the revised Credit Card use Policy (POL-401), which is attached hereto and 
incorporated herein, be established and adopted; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT this Credit Card Use Policy (POL-401) shall 
supersede and replace in full any previously adopted or approved Credit Card Use Policy 
(POL-401). 

 
Adopted this 18th day of August, 2020. 

 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Wes Martin, Chair     Sharon Trask, Vice-Chair 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
John Campbell, Authority Member   Kevin Dorcy, Authority Member 
 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Matt Jewett, Authority Member    Randy Neatherlin, Authority Member  
 
 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 123



Resolution No. 2020-2 Page 2 of 2 
 

______________________________  ____________________________ 
[Vacant], Authority Member   Kevin Shutty, Authority Member 
 
 
______________________________  
Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 124



 
 

Title: Credit Card Policy 
Number: 401 
Effective: August 18, 2020 
Revised:              July 21, 2015 
Cancels: N/A 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty,  
                             Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2020-20 

 

See Also:  PRO 401; POL-402; PRO-402  
Page 1 of 4 

POL-401 CREDIT CARD POLICY 

The purpose of this policy is to establish guidelines and to authorize Mason 
Transit Authority’s policy on the use of agency credit cards to transact official 
agency purchases, acquisitions and authorized travel expenses.  

1.0 Authority 
Mason Transit Authority (MTA) is authorized to use credit cards for official MTA 
purchases and acquisitions as set forth in RCW 43.09.2855 and pursuant of 
policies and procedures adopted by the Mason Transit Authority Board or the 
Mason Transit Authority Leadership Team when so designated by Board 
Authority. 

2.0 Distribution 
Credit cards may be distributed to those employees who have job 
responsibilities which would benefit or otherwise be facilitated by the use of a 
credit card. MTA credit cards are issued at the discretion of the General Manager 
and Administrative Services Manager.  

3.0 Authorization and Control 
The Administrative Services Manager shall develop and implement procedures 
and accounting controls as set forth to ensure the proper usage of credit cards. 
The Administrative Services Manager is responsible for administration of the 
cards to include, but not limited to, selection of the card provider, payment of 
credit card bills, managing the issuance of cards and ensuring proper use. 

The use of a credit card does not relieve the cardholder from complying with 
other MTA policies and procedures. The card is not intended to replace effective 
procurement planning which can result in more efficient use of MTA’s resources.  

4.0 Credit Limit 
The credit limits for each assigned MTA credit card shall be $2,500, except for 
the Maintenance Manager, Operations Manager, and Systems Administrator 
which shall have a credit card limit of $5,000. 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 125



 
 

Title: Credit Card Policy 
Number: 401 
Effective: August 18, 2020 
Revised:              July 21, 2015 
Cancels: N/A 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty,  
                             Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2020-20 

 

See Also:  PRO 401; POL-402; PRO-402  
Page 2 of 4 

 
 
5.0 Authorized Card Use 

Cardholders are authorized to use the card to purchase merchandise, make 
travel arrangements, conference and training registrations, services and other 
ordinary, necessary, reasonable, and usual expenses required as a function of 
their duties at MTA.  

Credit cards may be used by the assigned individuals for official travel-related 
expenses (such as hotel, parking, ferry, taxi, meals, gas, airline tickets, 
emergency MTA vehicle repairs) as authorized in advance by the General 
Manager or Team Manager and in compliance with all MTA travel policies. 

Purchases made with a credit card may be made in-store, by telephone, fax, 
Internet or mail. All procurement policies and procedures must be followed. 

Receipts must be submitted to the Administrative Services Team for all 
purchases. 

If a credit card is used for the purpose of covering expenses relating to 
authorized travel, receipts must be submitted with a Purchase Log and fully 
itemized travel expense reimbursement, if applicable, within ten (10) days of 
returning from such travel. Any charges on the credit card not properly identified 
on the Purchase Log or found to be not allowed after an audit (as required by 
RCW 42.240.80) shall be paid back to MTA by the individual user by check or 
payroll deduction. (See Unauthorized and Inappropriate Card Use.) 

Purchases where an open charge account exists may be utilized for convenience 
at the time of purchase with the approval of the Administrative Services 
Manager. 

A credit card may only be used by the cardholder unless approved by the 
Administrative Services Manager or Team Manager.   

 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 126



 
 

Title: Credit Card Policy 
Number: 401 
Effective: August 18, 2020 
Revised:              July 21, 2015 
Cancels: N/A 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty,  
                             Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2020-20 

 

See Also:  PRO 401; POL-402; PRO-402  
Page 3 of 4 

6.0 Card Restrictions 

The following uses will be considered an unauthorized purchase or use: 

• Cash advances of any kind. 
• Personal purchases of any kind, even if the cardholder intends to reimburse 

MTA. 
• Items for non-MTA purposes. 
• Food and beverages for an individual employee, unless authorization is pre-

approved for food and non-alcoholic beverages for business-related 
meetings and travel in compliance with MTA’s policies for Meetings and 
Meals and Travel. 

• Alcoholic beverages. 
• Relocation, entertainment and recreation expenses. 

7.0 Unauthorized and/or Inappropriate Card Use 

The act of obtaining a MTA credit card does not indicate pre-approval of 
purchases or expenditures/expenses. Any charges against MTA’s credit card not 
properly identified on the Purchase Log or not properly allowed following an 
audit of travel expenses shall be paid back by the employee. If, for any reason, 
disallowed charges are not repaid before the charge card billing is due and 
payable, the cardholder shall not use any MTA credit card until disallowed 
charges are reimbursed. The cardholder may also be subject to disciplinary 
action as described below. 

8.0 Disciplinary Action 
Cardholders who make an unauthorized purchase with the card or use the card 
in an inappropriate manner will be subject to revocation of the credit card and 
subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment 
with MTA, criminal prosecution, and restitution to MTA for unauthorized 
purchases. 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 127



 
 

Title: Credit Card Policy 
Number: 401 
Effective: August 18, 2020 
Revised:              July 21, 2015 
Cancels: N/A 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty,  
                             Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2020-20 

 

See Also:  PRO 401; POL-402; PRO-402  
Page 4 of 4 

9.0 Return of Credit Card 
Employees shall return all MTA credit cards at the request of the General 
Manager and/or Administrative Services Manager, or upon separation of 
employment.  

10.0 Responsibility and Accountability 
All cardholders must sign the Credit Card User Agreement form and adhere to all 
responsibilities and accountability set forth in MTA procurement policies and 
procedures. 

Cardholders are responsible and accountable for the expenses charged on the 
card in their name. Failure to provide proper receipts and documentation of 
charges, non-authorized usage or not adhering to policies and procedures may 
result in the user being responsible for the charge. 

Safeguard the credit card and account number at all times when in possession; 
report lost or stolen credit cards immediately to the Administrative Services 
Team and credit card agency. 

 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 128



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 7 – Actionable 
Subject:    Update of Coffee and Light Refreshments Policy 

(POL-403) 
Prepared by:  LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    August 18, 2020 
 
 
Background: 
 
This policy was last updated in 2014 and clarification was provided relating to allowable 
events, as well as the removal of a previously referenced statute that does not apply to 
transits. 
 
This policy has been reviewed by the Policy Committee and Legal Counsel. 
 
 
Summary: Amend existing Coffee and Light Refreshments Policy (POL-403). 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
None. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2020-21 and the 
attached Coffee and Light Refreshments Policy (POL-403). 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 129



 
 

Title: Coffee and Light Refreshments Policy 
Number: 403 
Effective: August 18, 202014 
Cancels: N/AResolution No. 2014-14 
Prepared by: Danette Brannin, Finance/IT ManagerLeeAnn 
McNulty, Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2014-142020-21 

 

See Also:  POL-404, Employee Recognition Program 
Page 1 of 2 

POL-403 COFFEE AND LIGHT REFRESHMENTS 

This policy applies to all Mason Transit Authority (MTA) employees and, Mason 
Transit Authority Board and Mason Transit Advisory Board. 

1.0 Purpose 

The purpose of this policy is to establish guidelines to authorize serving coffee 
and light refreshments. This authority is not intended for use with the normal 
daily business activities of Mason Transit Authority, but rather for special 
situations or occasions as approved in advance by the General Manager or 
designee. 

 
2.0        Definitions 

Coffee Aand Light Refreshments - Coffee encompasses any non-alcoholic 
beverage, such as tea, soft drinks, juice, or milk.  Light refreshment is an edible 
item that may be served between meals, for example, doughnuts, sweet rolls, 
and pieces of fruit or cheese. 

 
Regular Workplace - The location where employee or state official normally performs 
his/her work (excludes meeting and conference rooms). 

 
3.0       Allowable Events 

Per RCW 43.03.050(3) and (4), Ccoffee and light refreshments may be served at a 
meeting outside the regular workplace whereunder the following circumstances: 
• The person responsible for the meeting receives prior approval for the 

serving of coffee and light refreshments as documented properly by a 
completed Request for Approval - Light Refreshment/Meeting Meals form; 
and 

• The purpose of the meeting is to conduct MTA business; where the meeting 
is long and occurs during a mealtime; and 

• The coffee and light refreshments are an integral part of the meeting or 
training session; and 

• A receipt is obtained for the actual costs of the coffee and/or light 
refreshments.  

 
This policy is for special situations and occasions as well as legally authorized 
official public meetings, including executive sessions. It also includes employee 

Commented [LM1]: This RCW does not apply to local 
government entities per MRSC. 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 130



 
 

Title: Coffee and Light Refreshments Policy 
Number: 403 
Effective: August 18, 202014 
Cancels: N/AResolution No. 2014-14 
Prepared by: Danette Brannin, Finance/IT ManagerLeeAnn 
McNulty, Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2014-142020-21 

 

See Also:  POL-404, Employee Recognition Program 
Page 2 of 2 

recognition events outlined in MTA’s Employee Recognition Program when 
appropriate. 

 
MTA is not required to provide coffee and/or light refreshments at meetings. 
 

4.0 Hosting Activities/Team Meetings 

Mason Transit Authority shall not fund “hosting” activities that are intended 
either to lobby a legislator or a governmental official or are to be a social rather 
than a governmental business event. 
 
Coffee and light refreshments for team meetings, welcoming new staff or other 
employee activities outside of the Employee Recognition Program would not 
normally be provided using MTA funds.  

 
5.0 Responsibilities 

The person responsible for the meeting must fill out a Light Refreshment/Meeting 
Meal form and obtain proper approval prior to meeting. To receive reimbursement 
for the purchase of coffee and light refreshments: 

• A receipt must be obtained for the actual costs of the coffee and/or light 
refreshments. 

• The purpose of the meeting must be noted on the receipt or purchase log. 
• All other policies and procedures for purchasing on behalf of MTA must be 

followed. For example, if using a MTA credit card, a purchase log must be 
completed. 

 

 

 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 131



Resolution No. 2020-21 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-21 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
ADOPTING A REVISED COFFEE AND LIGHT REFRESHMENTS POLICY 
(POL-403) WHICH SHALL SUPERSEDE AND REPLACE IN FULL ANY 

PREVIOUSLY ADOPTED COFFEE AND LIGHT REFRESHMENTS POLICY 
(POL-403), INCLUDING RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 2014-14. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Mason Transit Authority Board previously approved Mason Transit 
Authority’s Coffee and Light Refreshments Policy (POL-403) by Resolution No. 2014-14 which 
became effective on August 1, 2014; and 

WHEREAS, upon periodic review of MTA’s policies, it was determined that the updates 
relate to clarification of allowable events, as well as remove a referenced statute that does not 
apply to transits; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
BOARD that the Coffee and Light Refreshments Policy (POL-403), which is attached hereto and 
incorporated herein, be established and adopted; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT this Coffee and Light Refreshments Policy 
(POL-403) shall supersede and replace in full any previously adopted or approved Coffee and 
Light Refreshments Policy (POL-403), including rescinding Resolution No. 2014-14. 

 
Adopted this 18th day of August, 2020. 

 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Wes Martin, Chair     Sharon Trask, Vice-Chair 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
John Campbell, Authority Member   Kevin Dorcy, Authority Member 
 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Matt Jewett, Authority Member    Randy Neatherlin, Authority Member  
 
 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 132



Resolution No. 2020-21 Page 2 of 2 
 

______________________________  ____________________________ 
[Vacant], Authority Member  Kevin Shutty, Authority Member 
 
 
______________________________  
Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 133



 
 

Title: Coffee and Light Refreshments Policy 
Number: 403 
Effective: August 18, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2014-14 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2020-21 

 

See Also:  POL-404, Employee Recognition Program 
Page 1 of 2 

POL-403 COFFEE AND LIGHT REFRESHMENTS 

This policy applies to all Mason Transit Authority (MTA) employees and Mason 
Transit Authority Board. 

1.0 Purpose 

The purpose of this policy is to establish guidelines to authorize serving coffee 
and light refreshments. This authority is not intended for use with the normal 
daily business activities of Mason Transit Authority, but rather for special 
situations or occasions as approved in advance by the General Manager or 
designee. 

 
2.0        Definitions 

Coffee and Light Refreshments - Coffee encompasses any non-alcoholic 
beverage, such as tea, soft drinks, juice, or milk.  Light refreshment is an edible 
item that may be served between meals, for example, doughnuts, sweet rolls, 
and pieces of fruit or cheese. 

 
Regular Workplace - The location where employee or state official normally performs 
his/her work (excludes meeting and conference rooms). 

 
3.0       Allowable Events 

Coffee and light refreshments may be served at a meeting under the following 
circumstances: 
• The person responsible for the meeting receives prior approval for the 

serving of coffee and light refreshments as documented properly by a 
completed Request for Approval - Light Refreshment/Meeting Meals form; 
and 

• The purpose of the meeting is to conduct MTA business; where the meeting 
is long and occurs during a mealtime; and 

• A receipt is obtained for the actual costs of the coffee and/or light 
refreshments.  

 
This policy is for special situations and occasions as well as legally authorized 
official public meetings, including executive sessions. It also includes employee 
recognition events outlined in MTA’s Employee Recognition Program when 
appropriate. 

 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 134



 
 

Title: Coffee and Light Refreshments Policy 
Number: 403 
Effective: August 18, 2020 
Cancels: Resolution No. 2014-14 
Prepared by: LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by: Authority Board 
 Resolution No. 2020-21 

 

See Also:  POL-404, Employee Recognition Program 
Page 2 of 2 

MTA is not required to provide coffee and/or light refreshments at meetings. 
 

4.0 Hosting Activities/Team Meetings 

Mason Transit Authority shall not fund “hosting” activities that are intended 
either to lobby a legislator or a governmental official or are to be a social rather 
than a governmental business event. 
 
Coffee and light refreshments for team meetings, welcoming new staff or other 
employee activities outside of the Employee Recognition Program would not 
normally be provided using MTA funds.  

5.0 Responsibilities 

The person responsible for the meeting must fill out a Light Refreshment/Meeting 
Meal form and obtain proper approval prior to meeting. To receive reimbursement 
for the purchase of coffee and light refreshments: 

• A receipt must be obtained for the actual costs of the coffee and/or light 
refreshments. 

• The purpose of the meeting must be noted on the receipt or purchase log. 
• All other policies and procedures for purchasing on behalf of MTA must be 

followed. For example, if using a MTA credit card, a purchase log must be 
completed. 

 

 

 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 135



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 8 – Actionable 
Subject:    First Amendment to Agreement PTD0044 
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    August 18, 2020 
 
 
Background: 
 
The MTA Authority Board, by Resolution No. 2019-23 adopted September 17, 2019, 
approved the Consolidated Grant Program Operating Grant Agreement Number 
PTD0044 with the Washington State Department of Transportation (WSDOT) for 
$5,598,576 which required a local match of $5,029,000 and authorized the General 
Manager to sign that agreement. 
 
Due to impacts of COVID-19, the Paratransit Special Needs Transit Formula Funds for 
Project B should be reduced by $970,00 to align with the adjustments made to the 
current funds delivery plan. No changes have been made to Projects A and C. 
 
The First Amendment to Agreement PTD0044 (the “First Amendment”) provides for the 
adjustment in the Project B costs. 
 
The reduction should not impact MTA’s ability to meet the service needs due to CARES 
Act funds and no or lower match to federal funds. 
 
 
Summary: Approve First Amendment to Agreement PTD0044 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
$970,000 reduction in State funds. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2020-22 that 
approves the First Amendment to Agreement PTD0044 between WSDOT and MTA and 
authorizes the General Manager to sign that First Amendment.  

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 136



 Page 1 of 4 PTD0044-01 

This is the FIRST AMENDMENT to AGREEMENT PTD0044 entered into between the 
Washington State Department of Transportation (hereinafter referred to as “WSDOT”), and 
Mason Transit Authority (hereinafter referred to as “CONTRACTOR”), and/or individually 
referred to as the “PARTY” and collectively referred to as the “PARTIES,”  
 

RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, both PARTIES agree to amend AGREEMENT PTD0044 to: 

- Reduce the Paratransit Special Needs Transit Formula Funds for Project B by $970,000 
to align with the adjustments made to the current delivery plan due to COVID 19. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, the following AMENDMENTS are hereby incorporated into 
AGREEMENT PTD0044: 
 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
1. RECITALS are hereby incorporated into this AGREEMENT. 

 
2. Amend the Caption heading ‘WSDOT Contact’ on the first page of the AGREEMENT to 
read as follows: 
 

 
 
 
 

3.  Amend the existing language in ‘SCOPE OF WORK AND BUDGET – Current Agreement 
Costs’ and replace it to read as follows: 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Total Current Agreement 
Cost

2,817,360$                           

4,628,576$                           

5,029,000$                           

Federal Funds

9,657,576$                           

1,811,216$                           State Funds

Total Grant Funds

Contractor's Funds

Current Agreement Costs

SCOPE OF WORK AND BUDGET

WSDOT Contact: Elizabeth Safsten 360-705-6885 
                               SafsteE@wsdot.wa.gov 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 137



 Page 2 of 4 PTD0044-01 

4.  Amend the existing language in ‘SCOPE OF WORK AND BUDGET – Funding by Project’ 
and replace it to read as follows (no changes to Projects A and C) 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Funding by Project

Project A:
UPIN # PTCO042

Service Area:
Scope of Work:

Funds Federal 
Award

Identification 
#

Current 
Percentage

Current Funds Projected 
Funds

Total Current 
and Projected 

Funds

Rural Mobility Transit 
Formula Funds N/A 15%  $           794,800  $           794,800 

FTA 5311

WA-18-X097; 
WA-2019-091; 

TBD 21%  $       1,067,040  $       1,067,040 

Contractor's Funds N/A 64%  $       3,288,635  $       4,232,816  $       7,521,451 

Projected Grant Funds N/A  $       1,109,722  $       1,109,722 

Total Project Cost 100% 5,150,475$        5,342,538$        10,493,013$     

Budget:

Regional Connections

Sustain regional fixed route service for the general public, people with 
special transportation needs, and express commuters routes in Mason 
County with connections to Kitsap, Thurston and Jefferson counties.

Current Funds reflect total funding appropriated by the Washington State Legislature for 
the Project in the 2019-2021 b iennium. Projected Funds are subject to appropriation by 
the Washington State Legislature, once appropriated, funds will be added to this 
AGREEMENT by written amendment.

Mason, Kitsap, Thurston, and Jefferson Counties

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 138



 Page 3 of 4 PTD0044-01 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Project B:
UPIN # PTCO043

Service Area:
Scope of Work:

Funds Federal 
Award

Identification 
#

Current 
Percentage

Current Funds Projected 
Funds

Total Current 
and Projected 

Funds

Rural Mobility Transit 
Formula Funds N/A 19%  $           548,391  $           548,391 

Paratransit Special 
Needs Transit Formula 
Funds N/A 16%  $           468,025  $           468,025 

FTA 5311
WA-2019-091; 

TBD 42%  $       1,244,880  $       1,244,880 

Contractor's Funds N/A 24%  $           696,630  $       2,770,904  $       3,467,534 

Projected Grant Funds N/A  $       1,294,675  $       1,294,675 

Total Project Cost 100% 2,957,926$        4,065,579$        7,023,505$        

Budget: Current Funds reflect total funding appropriated by the Washington State Legislature for 
the Project in the 2019-2021 b iennium. Projected Funds are subject to appropriation by 
the Washington State Legislature, once appropriated, funds will be added to this 
AGREEMENT by written amendment.

Sustain the Core Demand Response (Dial-A-Ride)transit services for the 
elderly, persons with special needs, low-income, and general public in 
Mason County.

Demand Response 

Mason County

Project C:
UPIN # PTCO044

Service Area:
Scope of Work:

Funds Federal 
Award

Identification 
#

Current 
Percentage

Current Funds Projected 
Funds

Total Current 
and Projected 

Funds

FTA 5311 WA-2018-077 33%  $           505,440  $           505,440 

Contractor's Funds N/A 67%  $       1,043,735  $       1,078,397  $       2,122,132 

Projected Grant Funds N/A  $           525,658  $           525,658 

Total Project Cost 100% 1,549,175$        1,604,055$        3,153,230$        

Budget:

Sustain core zone deviated fixed-route service for the general public and 
those with special needs in Mason County.

Mason County

Current Funds reflect total funding appropriated by the Washington State Legislature for 
the Project in the 2019-2021 b iennium. Projected Funds are subject to appropriation by 
the Washington State Legislature, once appropriated, funds will be added to this 
AGREEMENT by written amendment.

Zone (Deviated) Fixed Route 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 139



 Page 4 of 4 PTD0044-01 

5.  A copy of this AMENDMENT to the AGREEMENT shall be attached to and made a part of 
the original AGREEMENT.  Any references to the “AGREEMENT” shall mean 
“AGREEMENT as amended.” 

 
6.  All other terms and conditions of the original AGREEMENT not hereby amended shall 
remain in full force and effect.  This document may be simultaneously executed in several 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed original having identical legal effect. 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, WSDOT hereto have executed this AMENDMENT the day and year 
last written below. 
 
 
WASHINGTON STATE    CONTRACTOR 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 
By:   By:          
 Capital Projects & Funding Manager   Authorized Representative 
  Public Transportation Division     
                   Title: _______________________________ 
 
                   Print Name: _________________________                          
  
Date:  Date: _______________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 140



Resolution No. 2020-22 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-22 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
APPROVING THE FIRST AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT PTD0044 

BETWEEN MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY AND WASHINGTON STATE 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION AND AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL 

MANAGER TO EXECUTE SAME. 

 

WHEREAS, the Mason Transit Authority Board by Resolution No. 2019-23 adopted 
on September 17, 2019, approved the Washington State Department of Transportation 
(“WSDOT”) Consolidated Grant Program Operating Grant Agreement Number PTD0044, 
which required a local match of $5,029,000 and authorized the General Manager to 
execute the Agreement as Grantee on behalf of Mason Transit Authority; and 

 WHEREAS, due to COVID-19 impacts, the Paratransit Special Needs Transit Formula 
Funds for Project B only should be reduced by $970,000 to align with the adjustments made to 
the current funds delivery plan and WSDOT has prepared the First Amendment to Agreement 
PTD0044 in reflecting that reduction; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
BOARD to approve the First Amendment to Agreement PTD0044 providing for the $970,000 
reduction in Project B of the Paratransit Special Needs Transit Formula funds; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the General Manager is authorized to execute the 

First Amendment to Agreement PTD0044. 
 

Adopted this 18th day of August, 2020. 
 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Wes Martin, Chair     Sharon Trask, Vice-Chair 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
John Campbell, Authority Member   Kevin Dorcy, Authority Member 
 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Matt Jewett, Authority Member    Randy Neatherlin, Authority Member  

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 141



Resolution No. 2020-22 Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
[Vacant], Authority Member   Kevin Shutty, Authority Member 
 
 
______________________________  
Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 142



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 9 – Actionable 
Subject:    Contract with Rognlin’s on MTA Park and Ride Construction Projects 
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    August 18, 2020 
 
 
Background: 
 
On January 19, 2016, the Mason Transit Authority Board approved the acceptance of 
the WSDOT Agreement GCB2304 for Park & Ride Development and Improvements. 
 
An Invitation to Bid the MTA Park and Ride Construction Projects was published 
beginning July 9, 2020 and bid documents were posted on MTA’s website and available 
through the Builders Exchange of Washington. The deadline for bid submittals was on 
July 31, 2020 at 11:00AM and the bids were publicly read at 11:00AM on that day. 
 
Three bids were received. Rognlin’s, Inc. submitted the lowest qualified bid of 
$3,875,750 to carry out the following: 
 

Construction at four distinct park and ride locations: 
 
1. Cole Road 

Construction at this location will include pavement overlay, illumination, video surveillance, 
signing and striping and other work, all in accordance with the attached Contract Plans, these 
Contract Provisions, and the Standard Specifications. 

 
2. Shelton-Matlock Road 

Construction will include illumination, video surveillance, and other work, all in accordance 
with the attached Contract Plans, these Contract Provisions, and the Standard Specifications 
 

3. Pickering Road 
Construction at this location will include new pavement, pavement reconstruction, stormwater 
facilities, illumination, signing, striping, bus shelters and other work, all in accordance with the 
attached Contract Plans, these Contract Provisions, and the Standard Specifications. 
 

4. Log Yard Road  
Construction of a Park and Ride near the intersection of Log Yard Road and State Route 3 in 
Belfair which will include pavement, transit building, bus canopy, sidewalk, ADA facilities, 
stormwater facilities, septic system, illumination, signing, striping, and other work, all in 
accordance with the attached Contract Plans, these Contract Provisions, and the Standard 
Specifications. The transit building, bus canopy, and associated items will be broken out as a 
bid alternate in the schedule of values. 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 143



Alternate Description:  
The transit building will include a new 3,000 square foot single story wood framed 
structure constructed on concrete slab, with new single slope single ply roofing 
construction. Exterior walls are a combination of wood siding and metal siding with 
anodized aluminum windows and doors. Interior are wood framed walls with gypsum 
and some ceramic tile with minimal interior finishes. Additional work includes hollow 
metal doors, frames and wood doors.  Work includes full fire suppression system, 
mechanical, electrical, and plumbing systems. 
 
The bus canopy will include a single story steel framed canopy with metal roofing. The 
canopy is open below the roof for the pass through of buses. Steel shall be painted. 
Work includes sheet metal gutters, downspouts and trim, electrical, and fire 
suppression system. 
 
On-site septic system will be included in the alternate. 

 
 
Summary:  Award construction contract to Rognlin’s, Inc. for the MTA Park 
and Ride Construction Projects and authorize the General Manager to sign 
the contract. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
$3,875,750 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board (1) award the winning bid to Rognlin’s, 
Inc. for the MTA Park and Ride Construction Projects in the amount of $3,875,750 and 
(2) approve Resolution No. 2020-23 authorizing the General Manager to sign and 
execute the contract between Rognlin’s ,Inc. and Mason Transit Authority.  
 
 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 144



August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 145



August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 146



August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 147



August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 148



August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 149



August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 150



August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 151



August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 152



August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 153



August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 154



August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 155



August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 156



August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 157



August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 158



August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 159



August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 160



Resolution No. 2020-23 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-23 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO AWARD THE WINNING BID 

AND SIGN A CONTRACT WITH ROGNLIN’S, INC. OF ABERDEEN, 
WASHINGTON, FOR THE MTA PARK AND RIDE CONSTRUCTION 

PROJECTS IN AN AMOUNT OF $3,875,750. 

 

WHEREAS, the Mason Transit Authority Board by its approval of Resolution No. 2016-
02 adopted at its January 19, 2016 accepted the WSDOT Agreement GCB2304 for Park and 
Ride Development and Improvements and by Resolution No. 2017-23 adopted September 19, 
2017 approved the First Amendment to GCB2304; 

WHEREAS, an Invitation to Bid on the MTA Park and Ride Construction Projects was 
published beginning July 9, 2020 and bid documents were posted on MTA’s website and 
available through the Builders Exchange of Washington. The deadline for bid submittals for 
the projects described in Exhibit A attached hereto was on July 31, 2020 at 11:00AM; 

WHEREAS, three bids were timely submitted by July 31, 2020 and publicly opened at 
11:00 AM; and after staff reviewing and comparing all bids, the bid submitted by Rognlin’s, 
Inc. is found to meet all the necessary specifications and requirements at the lowest cost; and 

WHEREAS, the bid submitted by Rognlin’s is $3,875,750; which is within the engineer’s 
estimate of $4,060,890;  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
BOARD that it awards the bid submitted by Rognlin’s, Inc. of Aberdeen, Washington, as the 
winning bid for the MTA Park and Ride Construction Projects as described in Exhibit A hereto; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the General Manager is authorized to sign the contract 
between Rognlin’s, Inc and Mason Transit Authority. 

 
Adopted this 18th day of August, 2020. 

 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Wes Martin, Chair     Sharon Trask, Vice-Chair 
 
 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 161



Resolution No. 2020-23 Page 2 of 2 
 

______________________________  ______________________________ 
John Campbell, Authority Member   Kevin Dorcy, Authority Member 
 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Matt Jewett, Authority Member    Randy Neatherlin, Authority Member  
 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
[Vacant], Authority Member   Kevin Shutty, Authority Member 
 
 
______________________________  
Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 
 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 162



 

 

EXHIBIT A 

Description of Construction Projects 

 

Construction at four distinct park and ride locations: 
 
1. Cole Road 

Construction at this location will include pavement overlay, illumination, video surveillance, 
signing and striping and other work, all in accordance with the attached Contract Plans, these 
Contract Provisions, and the Standard Specifications. 

 
2. Shelton-Matlock Road 

Construction will include illumination, video surveillance, and other work, all in accordance with 
the attached Contract Plans, these Contract Provisions, and the Standard Specifications 
 

3. Pickering Road 
Construction at this location will include new pavement, pavement reconstruction, stormwater 
facilities, illumination, signing, striping, bus shelters and other work, all in accordance with the 
attached Contract Plans, these Contract Provisions, and the Standard Specifications. 
 

4. Log Yard Road  
Construction of a Park and Ride near the intersection of Log Yard Road and State Route 3 in 
Belfair which will include pavement, transit building, bus canopy, sidewalk, ADA facilities, 
stormwater facilities, septic system, illumination, signing, striping, and other work, all in 
accordance with the attached Contract Plans, these Contract Provisions, and the Standard 
Specifications. The transit building, bus canopy, and associated items will be broken out as a 
bid alternate in the schedule of values. 
 
Alternate Description:  

The transit building will include a new 3,000 square foot single story wood framed 
structure constructed on concrete slab, with new single slope single ply roofing 
construction. Exterior walls are a combination of wood siding and metal siding with 
anodized aluminum windows and doors. Interior are wood framed walls with gypsum 
and some ceramic tile with minimal interior finishes. Additional work includes hollow 
metal doors, frames and wood doors.  Work includes full fire suppression system, 
mechanical, electrical, and plumbing systems. 
 
The bus canopy will include a single story steel framed canopy with metal roofing. The 
canopy is open below the roof for the pass through of buses. Steel shall be painted. 
Work includes sheet metal gutters, downspouts and trim, electrical, and fire 
suppression system. 
 
On-site septic system will be included in the alternate. 

 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 163



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Informational Report Item 1 - Informational 
Subject:    Mason Transit Authority Regional Mobility Park and Ride 

Progress Update 
Prepared by:  Patrick Holm, SCJ Alliance 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    August 18, 2020 
 
Summary for Discussion Purposes:   
 
Project Management:  SCJ is continually managing the design team and subconsultant 
team. SCJ is tracking on-going project progress.  
 
Permitting: Permits have been completed for the MTA Park and Ride Development 
Program 
 
Log Yard Road/SR 3 Roundabout Project:  

• Construction 
o ACI has completed construction of the Log Yard Road roundabout. 

 
Pear Orchard Construction: SCJ, Scarsella, and the City of Shelton met 8/12 to have a 
restart pre-construction meeting. Scarsella anticipates re-starting the week of 8/17.  
 
Construction Documents: Belfair-Log Yard Road, Cole Road, Pickering Road, and 
Shelton-Matlock Road were advertised together as a combined bid package. Rognlin’s 
was the low bid at $3,875,750 compared to SCJ engineer’s estimate of $4,060,890. 
MTA is working on contracting with Rognlin’s to begin construction. 
 
Other progress: Scarsella/Parsons plans to start construction of the Shelton-Matlock 
Road park and ride starting the week of 8/17. 
 
SCJ is coordinating with Hood Canal Communications to provide security cameras at the 
Pickering Road park and ride. 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 164



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Informational Report Item 2 – Informational 
Subject:    Management Reports 
Prepared by:  Tracy Becht, Executive Assistant 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    August 18, 2020 
 
Summary for Informational Purposes: 
 
The monthly MTA Management Reports are attached for your information. 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 165



  

  

 

MTA MANAGEMENT REPORTS 
 

Submitted to MTA Authority Board August 18, 2020 
 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 166



 
 1 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

|8
/1

8/
20

20
  

 

MTA MANAGEMENT REPORTS 
Submitted to MTA Authority Board August 18, 2020 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

Below is a l ist of major activit ies for the month: 
 
Park & Ride Development: 

• Bid package for all projects was released on July 8, 2020. The bid package covers the remaining work 
to be done at Shelton-Matlock that was not part of the in-kind piece and expansion of the in-kind to be 
completed through the Coffee Creek fish passage project. Also included are Belfair Park & Ride, Cole 
Rd upgrades and Pickering upgrades. Bids were opened on July 31, 2020 with Rognlin’s Inc. being the 
lowest responsive bidder.  

• Once contract with Rognlin’s is approved, I will be working with Patrick and Rognlin’s on a timeline for 
each project. It is anticipated Belfair Park & Ride will start in September.  

• Pear Orchard is resuming and Shelton-Matlock will also be under construction shortly. 
• Please see Park & Ride informational page for more details. 

T-CC Parking Lot: 
• We are still finishing up the documents for the No Further Action opinion. 
• It has cost MTA approximately $160k to complete the Voluntary Cleanup Program requirements. The 

biggest cost is transporting contaminated soil. It was a costly process to receive a NFA opinion and we 
are still working through the final details, but this will set any concern aside that DOE would later 
require us to clean up the site.  

EDC:  Attended monthly June EDC Board meeting (virtually). Meeting to review agenda. 
WSTIP: Attended the Monthly Executive Committee meeting (virtually). 
WSTA/SMTA: Participated in bi-weekly SMTA call with other GMs. 
Webinars: Attended the following webinars: 

• Grant Management System Sub-recipient Training for Consolidated Grants. 
• Green Transportation Capital Grant Program. Decided not to move forward at this time with submitting 

a grant. 
• Transit Tuesday: Restoring Transit Rider Confidence. 
• Transit Tuesday: Innovating in a Time of Crisis. 

External Activities: 
• None this past month. 

Internal Activities: 
• Completed public hearings for the Transit Development Plan. No input was received from the public. 
• Reviewed the new CBA with Operations and LeeAnn to ensure understanding. 
• Met with Park & Ride Project Manager. 
• Weekly meetings with Operations Manager. 
• Met with Mike and LeeAnn on staffing matters. 
• Attended an Operations Meeting with manager and supervisors. 
• Bid opening for park & ride project. 
• Employee Engagement Committee meeting (finally resumed committee). 
• Policy Committee meeting. 
• Discussed Ecolane project with Mike and Josh. Determined next steps. 
• Virtual meeting with medium transits GMs and Rep. Fey regarding transit needs. 
• Continued policy review. 
• Worked with marketing firm on finalizing tail signs, pamphlets and weekly ads. 
• Updated the STIP. 
• Staff planning with managers. 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 167



 

2 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
8/

18
/2

02
0 

 

Board Assistance, Awareness and Support: 
• We have been notified by the building owner that the Belfair office has been sold. We have determined 

our best option is to rent a mobile office to place at Roy Boad. Marshall has been working with the Roy 
Boad Rd landowner, PUD#3 and Pacific Mobile Structure. We looked at many different options for 
space for the Belfair Drivers but because we need the ability to park a coach while a driver is on 
break/lunch, it limited us in finding a suitable location. Since we plan to start the Belfair Park & Ride 
soon, there is the possibility of moving the mobile office up to our property while we wait for the 
building to be constructed.  

• We are working with the North Mason Chamber for a ground breaking ceremony for the North Mason 
Park & Ride. I will let you know the date once it is set. Most likely early September. 

TEAM UPDATES 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES MANAGER – LeeAnn McNulty 
 
HR Support   

• Participating in bi-weekly shop talk WSTA HR Committee meetings. 
• Participated in Employee Engagement Committee meeting. 
• Continue managing ESD Shared Work plan. 
• Reviewed Education Assistance Program Policy 
• Reviewed Whistleblower Protection Policy 
• Reviewed Equal Employment Opportunity Policy 
• Reviewed Harassment Prevention Policy 
• Met with Mike and Danette re staff planning. 
• Participated in second round SHRM Pandemic Response Study 

 
Recruiting 

• Currently recruiting for a Backup Worker Driver. 
 

Administrative Functions 
• SAO virtual audit will begin 8/17/2020 and is expected to take 6-7 weeks. 
• First half of CARES Act funds depleted midway through July.  Awaiting contract for second half of funds 

from WSDOT, expected in September.  In the meantime, we will continue to seek reimbursement from 
our existing Consolidated Operating Grant. 

• Reviewed Credit Card Policy. 
• Reviewed Travel & Travel Reimbursement Policy 
• Reviewed Coffee & Light Refreshment Policy 
• Reviewed Meals with Meetings Policy 
• Attended Policy Committee meeting. 
• Working with Tracy to refine contract and lease management processes. 
• Continued providing WSDOT with documentation in response to Admin review. 

 
MAINTENANCE/FACILITIES – Marshall Krier 
 
Outreach and meetings: 

• Attended the Transit Tuesday Webinar: Innovating in a Time of Crisis. 
• Assisting with the Washington State Fuel and Bus Procurement Contract development via Zoom 

meetings. 
• Corresponded with the Automotive Instructor at Shelton high School for the upcoming school year 

advisory committee meeting. 
 
T-CC Facility: 
• Gym: Pickleball program has resumed. 
• Conference Room: No activity due to COVID-19 virus. 
• Kitchen: Three people utilized the kitchen. 
 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 168



 
 3 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

|8
/1

8/
20

20
  

T-CC Building Projects/Purchases/Maintenance 
Projects/Purchases 
• Continuing with COVID-19 virus cleaning protocol. 
• Signage installation for the new parking lot. 
• Sourced and ordered appropriate and approved bi-lingual Corona Virus signage for passenger sidewalks 

and T-CC building. 
 

Johns Prairie and Belfair Building Projects/Purchases/Maintenance: 
• Continued prep work for Unite GPS installation. 
• Testing the driver’s barrier for the Gillig coaches. 
• Ordered drivers barriers for 6 cutaways form Schetky N.W. 
• Arranging for a temporary office for the Belfair drivers. 
• On-going search and procurement for cleaning supplies for COVID cleaning protocol. 
• Remodeling the upstairs restroom. 

 
OPERATIONS – Mike Ringgenberg 
 
Accident Rate: Our accident rate for Jan-July is .51% (translation:  We have one accident every 200,000 miles 
driven).   

Driver barriers:  We have installed one driver barrier in bus 306 and are gathering driver’s feedback. 

Ecolane:  We have been using the new software from Ecolane DAR for a few weeks and it is streamlining the 
rides!  

Meals on Wheels:  We continue to respond to the Senior Center’s request for our help with the Meals on 
Wheels program. MTA delivered 623 meals to Mason County residents in July.  We also delivered 28 
commodity boxes on July 14, 2020. 

Outreach presentations:  All outreach presentations have stopped during the COVID-19 outbreak. 

Recovery Rides:  We conducted six recovery rides in June to help stranded passengers who missed routes due 
to reduced services. Operations Supervisors conducted eight driver/passenger assistance calls in July. 

Ridership:  We gained 2,700 riders back in July over June!  Our ridership is down 63% which means we have 
lost 26,052 riders for July 2020 when compared to July 2019.  

Saturday Service:  We are bringing back limited Saturday service commencing August 22, 2020. 

Training:  Lisa performed one Behind the Wheel test for a new vanpool driver.   

Vanpool:  Usage rate for July 2020 was 60%; 6 of 10 vans were in use.   

Volunteer Driver:  Our extra board drivers performed six volunteer driver rides due to no volunteer drivers being 
able to drive due to COVID-19.   

Worker/Driver:  We are currently in the process of hiring one back up worker driver.  We are still looking for an 
additional 2 more back up drivers to help cover the 4 routes. 

 

  

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 169



 

4 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
8/

18
/2

02
0 

 

 

 

 

2020 WORK ITEMS UPDATE 
 

 

 

 

 

SEE ATTACHED SPREADSHEETS 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 170



2020 Work Items Completed as 
of 7/17/2020

1st Quarter Driver training and refresher training as required √

2nd Quarter Driver training and refresher training as required √

3rd Quarter Driver training and refresher training as required

Complete CAD/AVL/GPS installation

Change from flag stop to fixed stop in urban area of Shelton

Curbs or bollards at Johns Prairie

Purchase rain jackets

Manager or supervisor on-duty during service - Move Ops office √

Ensure L & I safety compliance through training

Review WSTIP Best Practices for Safety

Define Safety Committee's purpose and direction

Review DAR services and hours for efficiency and availability √

Expand Zipper route time to 8:00am-5:00pm √

Seek Pilot opportunities and funding

Continue review of Comp Service Review √

Conduct outreach for all service changes

Once regular service hours resume, we will continue to track DAR and complete a survey on the whether the 
changes we made in Feb are providing efficiency and availability. Until then, the project is considered 
completed as our Feb. 3, 2020 shake up changes showed an 8% increase in DAR ridership.

Zipper route time has been expanded.

Working on pilot route for Lakeland Village and ATS (Agate, Timberlake and Shorecrest).
We have completed looking at recommendations from the Comp. Service Review. However, we will continue 
to use this document as a reference.

We did outreach on our current service changes - public meetings, direct communication with riders and a 
radio spot. Outreach has/is being conducted during the COVID-19 crisis through press releases and rider 
alerts; keeping website up-to-date with current information and route changes.

Objective 2: Effective Transportation Services

Working on logo to be placed on the jackets; will be using our WSTIP Safety Grant of $2,500 to purchase the 
rain jackets.

Operations office at T-CC is complete. Operations Supervisors are now available while service is operating.

Progress

First Quarter Training included: 10 CPR/AED/FA Trainings; all drivers did 8 hours of refresher training on ADA 
callouts, Mindful Driving, G.O.A.L., Safety Incentives and PASS(wheelchair) Training.  One Vol. Driver trained 
and one new Worker/Driver; 57 of Operations staff participated in a 90 minute presentaton by the National 
Alliance of Mental Illness; retrained one driver on a coach; and training on the new Hybrid bus with 
Worker/Drivers. 

Letter of Termination has been sent; waiting refund and starting the process over. Testing with UniteGPS for 
CAD/AVL and working on contract with Ecolane for scheduling software. Have almost completed training on 
new scheduling software. Testing of Unite GPS is going well. Currently testing passenger counting. Ready 
for soft launch on Ecolane! Ecolane has been launched and Unite GPA is about ready to be.

Objective 1: Safe and Secure

Bus on the Lookout; CPR/AED/FA; one volunteer driver trained; two back-up worker/drivers were route 
trained; Ecolane; Reasonable Suspicion; PASS; COVID-19 PPE; one driver refresher; new vehicle training.

N:\Admin\Admin Shared\MTA Authority Board ARCHIVAL\2020 Authority Board\Workplan Update 2020 August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 171



Improve passenger amenities 

Plan for 2021 service adjustments due to impact of funding √

Benchmark route performance and monitor low-performing routes

Procurement training for Public Works projects √

Prepare for I-976 impacts

Create needed financial policies or manual

Ensure compliance of grant contracts

Review 5-year sustainability plan √

Prepare for Paid Family Medical Leave rollout √
Maintain Fair Labor Standard Act compliance through updated 
training

Records Management - Network reorganization

Conduct Community Conversations to solicit input

Participate in community events

Promote City and County partnerships

Participate in outside committees, RTPO and boards

Participate in mentorship programs

Promote Volunteer Driver Program

Park & Ride project (through 2023)

Brand vehicles √

Progression toward inclusion of electric vehicles

Objective 4: Community Partnerships and Responsibility

Staff talked to Patty Wagon to discuss forming a partnership so if we are short drivers we can get some 
assistance from them. Since several of our Volunteer Drivers are older, they are not driving as much so MTA 
drivers are filling the gap and taking clients to essential appointments in an MTA vehicle.

Standard design for branding buses is complete;  some of the new cutaways will have taglines on them 
promoting MTA.

Objective 3: Financial Stewardship

Staff attended training. Policy has been updated. Processes and forms have been created. Finance staff 
trained department heads.

We will begin to look at the financial impact as it appears the initiative will be upheld. 

Service levels will be returning to 75% of what we had pre-COVID. We will be using this base line 
as the premise for future service levels should the impact of I-976 becomes a reality. In the TDP, 
we show a reduction in service in 2021-2022.

The 5-year sustainability plan has been updated. Staff will be seeking input from the Board.

Policy has been created. Employees have been presented with information at the All-MTA Meeting.

The file structure has been planned and the IT Team is in the process of creating a new drive. New drive has 
been created. Next step is to begin using new drive and naming structure.

Completed the information center at the T-CC; working on new scheduling software that has an app for 
scheduling a ride and knowing where the bus is.

This is currently on hold due to COVID-19.

Delivering meals to seniors during the COVID-19 crisis.

Working with City on T-CC Parking Lot project

Danette: PRTPO, EDC, WSTIP, WSTA. Kathy: Moving Mason Forward, TIP CAP, Opiate Stakeholders. LeeAnn: 
WSTIP. Marshall: Centralia College Diesel Advisory Committee.

No activities this month.

See Park & Ride informational page for update.

Reviewing a grant opportunity for electric bus but decided to pass on the grant.

N:\Admin\Admin Shared\MTA Authority Board ARCHIVAL\2020 Authority Board\Workplan Update 2020 August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 172



Improve communications through established methods

Incorporate wellness program and encourage participation

Promote skills and job knowledge

Bargain contracts for drivers and Comm Center

Employee Engagement committee 

Enhance meaningful employee recognition √

Provide more Belfair interaction and oversight

Prepare a policy review schedule √

Objective 5: Workplace Culture

The Employee Engagement Committee is working through a communication plan.

Created a schedule for reviewing policies.

Kick off of Wellness Program was done at the All-MTA Meeting with the first wellness challenge. The 
committee has several activities planned.

GM working with Ops and Finance on expanding knowledge of staff.

Drivers' contract has been ratified. Have not started the Comm Center contract yet.

Committee continues to meet. A survey was prepared for the All-MTA meeting and we had 78% participation. 
The next project to work on is a communication flow chart. Resumed meeting and plan to meet bi-weekly or 
as committee is available.

We have revised the employee recognition policy; have incorporated a safety bonus for drivers; are being 
mindful of showing appreciation. 

N:\Admin\Admin Shared\MTA Authority Board ARCHIVAL\2020 Authority Board\Workplan Update 2020 August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 173



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Informational Item 3 –Informational 
Subject:    Operational Statistics 
Prepared by:  LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    August 18, 2020 
 
 
Background: 
 
The Operation Statistic report highlights the performance of each major operational 
category through Q2-2020. This information reflects the number of passengers per mile 
travelled, the cost of each passenger per service type, the number of miles travelled per 
hour, the cost of those miles, the number of passengers transported in an hour, and 
the cost per hour to operate. The costs reflected are those that directly contribute to 
service delivery and do not include administrative costs. 
 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 174



RIDERSHIP DATA CHARTED

800
1200
1600
2000
2400
2800
3200
3600
4000
4400

Demand Response 2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

350
1850
3350
4850
6350
7850
9350

10850
12350
13850
15350
16850
18350
19850
21350
22850

Out of County Ridership
2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

4600
6100
7600
9100

10600
12100
13600
15100
16600
18100
19600

In County Ridership 2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

7500
10500
13500
16500
19500
22500
25500
28500
31500
34500
37500
40500
43500

Total Ridership 2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

1
301
601
901

1201
1501
1801
2101
2401
2701
3001
3301
3601

Express Ridership
2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 175



Operations Statistics

Fixed Route (in county) Apr-June 2019 Apr-June 2020 Year over Year 
Variance Prev. Rolling 12 mos. Rolling 12 Months Rolling Variance                                                        

Passenger Trips (one-way boardings) 47,579$                          15,458 -68% 170,043 157,920 -7.1%
Total Vehicle Miles 41,158 22,571 -45% 157,836 145,126 -8.1%
Total Vehicle Hours 3,070 1,937 -37% 12,690 12,036 -5.1%
Direct Project Expenses 228,623$                        362,411$                       59% 864,859$                        1,034,029$                    19.6%
Trips/Mile 1.16 0.68 -41% 1.08 1.09 1.0%
Cost/Trip 4.81$                              23.44$                            388% 5.09$                              6.55$                              28.7%
Miles Per Hour 13.41 11.65 -13% 12.44 12.06 -3.1%
Cost/Mile 5.55$                              16.06$                            189% 5.48$                              7.13$                              30.0%
Trips/Hour 15.50 7.98 -49% 13.40 13.12 -2.1%
Cost/Hour 74.47$                            187.08$                          151% 68.15$                            85.91$                            26.1%

Fixed Route (out of county) Apr-June 2019 Apr-June 2020 Year over Year 
Variance Prev. Rolling 12 mos. Rolling 12 Months Rolling Variance                                                        

Passenger Trips (one-way boardings) 36,520 3,319 -91% 133,048 103,170 -22.5%
Total Vehicle Miles 100,218 23,310 -77% 383,844 309,383 -19.4%
Total Vehicle Hours 4,587 1,004 -78% 17,910 14,006 -21.8%
Direct Project Expenses 594,333$                        374,276$                       -37% 2,264,272$                    1,942,921$                    -14.2%
Trips/Mile 0.36 0.14 -61% 0.35 0.33 -3.8%
Cost/Trip 16.27$                            112.77$                          593% 17.02$                            18.83$                            10.7%
Miles Per Hour 21.85 23.21 6% 21.43 22.09 3.1%
Cost/Mile 5.93$                              16.06$                            171% 5.90$                              6.28$                              6.5%
Trips/Hour 7.96 3.30 -58% 7.43 7.37 -0.8%
Cost/Hour 129.56$                          372.64$                          188% 126.42$                          138.72$                          9.7%

Demand Response Apr-June 2019 Apr-June 2020 Year over Year 
Variance Prev. Rolling 12 mos. Rolling 12 Months Rolling Variance                                                        

Passenger Trips (one-way boardings) 11,723 3,255 -72% 41,217 34,560 -16.2%
Total Vehicle Miles 77,935 29,952 -62% 284,396 261,077 -8.2%
Total Vehicle Hours 5,760 2,982 -48% 21,107 21,140 0.2%
Direct Project Expenses 462,186$                        480,924$                       4% 1,663,921$                    1,747,361$                    5.0%
Trips/Mile 0.15 0.11 -28% 0.14 0.13 -8.7%
Cost/Trip 39.43$                            147.75$                          275% 40.37$                            50.56$                            25.2%
Miles Per Hour 13.53 10.04 -26% 13.47 12.35 -8.3%
Cost/Mile 5.93$                              16.06$                            171% 5.85$                              6.69$                              14.4%
Trips/Hour 2.04 1.09 -46% 1.95 1.63 -16.3%
Cost/Hour 80.24$                            161.28$                          101% 78.83$                            82.66$                            4.9%

Worker Driver Apr-June 2019 Apr-June 2020 Year over Year 
Variance Prev. Rolling 12 mos. Rolling 12 Months Rolling Variance                                                        

Passenger Trips (one-way boardings) 12,708 5,625 -56% 45,038 39,166 -13.0%
Total Vehicle Miles 15,685 15,711 0.17% 59,662 60,426 1.3%
Total Vehicle Hours 638 624 -2% 2,451 2,460 0.3%
Direct Project Expenses 56,941$                          54,513$                          -4% 204,256$                        192,489$                        -5.8%
Trips/Mile 0.81 0.36 -56% 0.75 0.65 -14.1%
Cost/Trip 4.48$                              9.69$                              116% 4.54$                              4.91$                              8.4%August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 176



Operations Statistics

Miles Per Hour 24.57 25.20 3% 24.34 24.57 0.9%
Cost/Mile 3.63$                              3.47$                              -4% 3.42$                              3.19$                              -7.0%
Trips/Hour 19.91 9.02 -55% 18.37 15.92 -13.3%
Cost/Hour 89.19$                            87.43$                            -2% 83.33$                            78.26$                            -6.1%

Express Routes Apr-June 2019 Apr-June 2020 Year over Year 
Variance Prev. Rolling 12 mos. Rolling 12 Months Rolling Variance                                                        

Passenger Trips (one-way boardings) 6,469 464 -93% 25,701 17,756 -30.9%
Total Vehicle Miles 24,608 4,115 -83% 94,998 75,255 -20.8%
Total Vehicle Hours 965 175 -82% 4,122 2,989 -27.5%
Direct Project Expenses 161,396$                        66,072$                          -59% 596,437$                        455,577$                        -23.6%
Trips/Mile 0.26 0.11 -57% 0.27 0.24 -12.8%
Cost/Trip 24.95$                            142.40$                          471% 23.21$                            25.66$                            10.6%
Miles Per Hour 25.51 23.51 -8% 23.05 25.18 9.2%
Cost/Mile 6.56$                              16.06$                            145% 6.28$                              6.05$                              -3.6%
Trips/Hour 6.71 2.65 -60% 6.24 5.94 -4.7%
Cost/Hour 167.32$                          377.56$                          126% 144.71$                          152.42$                          5.3%

Total Service Apr-June 2019 Apr-June 2020 Year over Year 
Variance Prev. Rolling 12 mos. Rolling 12 Months Rolling Variance                                                        

Passenger Trips (one-way boardings) 114,999 28,121 -76% 415,047 352,572 -15.1%
Total Vehicle Miles 259,604 95,659 -63% 980,736 851,267 -13.2%
Total Vehicle Hours 15,021 6,722 -55% 58,280 52,630 -9.7%
Direct Project Expenses 1,503,480$                    1,338,196$                    -11.0% 5,593,745$                    5,372,376$                    -4.0%
Trips/Mile 0.44 0.29 -34% 0.42 0.41 -2.1%
Cost/Trip 13.07$                            47.59$                            264% 13.48$                            15.24$                            13.1%
Miles Per Hour 17.28 14.23 -18% 16.83 16.17 -3.9%
Cost/Mile 5.79$                              13.99$                            142% 5.70$                              6.31$                              10.6%
Trips/Hour 7.66 4.18 -45% 7.12 6.70 -5.9%
Cost/Hour 100.09$                          199.08$                          99% 95.98$                            102.08$                          6.4%

*Direct Project Expenses include only those costs to support Operations, Dispatch, Worker Drivers, Drivers, Maintenance, & Belfair, not including administrative costs.  Costs are 
allocated by % of miles for each service type. *Total Service does not include Vanpool, Volunteer Driver, Squaxin, Radich or T-CC. 

August 18, 2020 Reg. Board Mtg. Pg. 177


	ADPDE09.tmp
	Mason Transit Authority
	Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting
	July 21, 2020
	Transit-Community Center
	601 West Franklin Street
	Shelton
	NEW BUSINESS
	UPCOMING MEETING

	ADPB89A.tmp
	Plan Adoption, Public Hearing and Distribution
	Plan Adoption
	Public Participation Process
	Plan Distribution
	Description of Service Area, Operations and Facilities
	Service Area
	Operations
	Map 1 – Service Area
	Table 1 - Fares
	Facilities
	MTA operations, maintenance and administrative facilities are located at 790 E. Johns Prairie Road in Shelton, Washington.  A rented satellite operations facility is located at 23780 NE State Hwy 3 in Belfair, Washington.  MTA also leases space at the...
	Park and Ride Lots

	State and Agency Goals, Objectives and Strategies
	Table 2:  2020 – 2025 Goals, Objectives, and Strategies, and Alignment with State Goal
	Local Performance Measures and Targets
	Table 3:  2020 – 2025 Performance Measurements and Targets
	Plan Consistency
	Planned Capital Expenses
	Table 4 – Planned Capital Expenses
	Planned Operating Changes
	Table 5 – Planned Operating Changes
	Multiyear Financial Plan
	Capital Improvement:
	Table 6 – Capital Purchases
	Operating Financial Assumptions through 2025
	Table 7 – Operating
	Projects of Regional Significance
	Agency History, Organizational Structure, Accomplishments, Outlook and Outreach Coordination
	Board of Directors:
	Citizen Adviser to the Board:
	Public Outreach:
	2019 Accomplishments:
	Table 9 – 2019 Accomplishments

	D NB 1 Agreement re GCB 3332.pdf
	GCB 3332
	Exhibit A GCB 3332
	Book1
	PSJV - Coffee Creek Park and Ride Lot Quote

	Exhibit B GCB 3332
	Exhibit C GCB 3332
	Exhibit D GCB 3332

	ADP4F6B.tmp
	GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT
	Below is a list of major activities for the month:
	Board Assistance, Awareness and Support:

	TEAM UPDATES
	2020 WORK ITEMS UPDATE

	ADPD892.tmp
	2020

	O Info Item 3 Operations Stats Charted.pdf
	Sheet2

	O Info Item 3 Operations Stats.pdf
	Rolling Year




